


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

The DBF Leasing Corporation (DBPLC), formerly named MNational Development
Corporation — Maritime Leasing Corperation, was acquired by the Development Bank of
the Philippines (OBP) from the National Development Corporation (NDC) on June 12,
2008. DBP than renamed the company DBP Maritime Leasing Corporation (DMLC). Its
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registration which inciuded the increase in
the capital stock was approved on May 11, 2009 under Registration No. 128538 DMLC
changed its name to DBP Leasing Corporation on January 14, 2010 to reflect the
change in the scope of its business.

Im 2014, DBPLC introduced additienal financial services such as amortized commercial
loan and receivables discounting to expand its services.

On April 20, 2015, DBPLC amended its primary purpose o reflect the change in the
scope of its business as follows:

a, To engage, transact and deal in the business of leasing and financing in
all its aspects and forms, including that of financial leases and operating
leases, with the power to arrange, underwrite, manage, develop or
administer leases of any and all types of rental and personal properies,
any and all kinds of equipment, machineries, vehicles, vessels, airplanes,
appliances, merchandise and facilities, limited to sale-lease back
arrangements, hire-purchase agreements and other lease financing
schemes,

b. to extend credit facilities to single proprietorships, and to industnal,
commerzial or agncultural enterprnises, whether public or private n
character, by way of loans or direct lending, or discounting, rediscounting
or factoring commercial papers or accounts receivables, or by buying or
selling contracts, leases, chattel mongages or other evidence of and
powers of a financing company under the Financing Company Act, as
amended, and to do any act or engage in any activity that may be directly
or indirectly necessary, proper or convenient for the accomplishment of its

primary purpose.

From a stockholders” equity of PG 250 million in 2004, the amount increased o PO 982
billion as at December 31, 2021

Authorized capital stock is P1.5 billion of which P1 billion is common and P05 billion is
prefarred  Both shares have a par value per share gf P100.00. DEP's subscribed and
paid-up capital is P1 billion common shares and P132 million preferred shares

DBPLC Chairman of the Board iz Cyr C. Gonesto. As at December 31, 2021, the
Comoration has 27 regular employees, three prooationary, and four contraciual
personnel




AUDIT METHODOLOGY AND SCOPE OF AUDIT

Cwr audit covered the examination, on a test basis, of transactions and accounts of
DBFLC for the period January 1 to December 31, 2021 to enable us to axprass an
opinion on the financial statements for the yvears ended December 31, 2027 and 2020 in
accordanca with the Intemational Standards of Supreme Audit |Institutions. Also, we
conducted our audit to assess compliance with pertinent laws, rules and requiations as
well ag adherence to prescribed policies and procedures

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
{In Philippine Peso)

I. Comparative Financial Position

e 202 2020 Decrease

Assets 2,804,940, 311 3,552 B88 344  (747,939,033)
Liabilities 1,812,917,614 2,486,170,353  (653,252,738)
Equity 982,031,697  1.086717,091  (94,686,284)

. Comparative Results of Operations

Increasel
2021 2020 {Decrease)
Income 145,701,128 203,672,966 (57.971,840)
Expanses 227,147 483 187,200,977 A4 846 508
Comprehensive (Loss)/Income (871,445 355) 16,471,981 (97 ,918,348)
[ll. Comparative Budget and Actual Expenditures
) 2021 ' 2020
Budget  Actual Budget Actual

Personnel expenses 31,134 447 25840646 27,682 451 28,440,235
Maintenance and other

operating expenses 45554 721 25,626,816 36.825.831 35.911,962
Capital expenditures B 595 000 4 584 384 B. 782, 000 TeT BED

AUDITOR'S OPINION

The Auditor rendered an unmodified opinion on the fairmess of presentation of the
financial statements of DBPLC for the years endad December 31, 2021 and 2020




SUMMARY OF TOTAL SUSPENSIONS, DISALLOWANCES AND CHARGES AS OF
YEAR-END

Az of December 31, 2021, tolal disallowances amcunted to PBE.ES70.276.400 Audit
disallowance Izsued during the year amounted {o P3.647,128.04. Thera weare no audit
suspensions and charges as of year-end

STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEAR'S AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

Thera were no audit recommendations emibodied in the OY 2020 Annual Audit Heport
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E‘E*h REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors
DBEP Leasing Corporation
Makati City

Report on the Audit of Fimancial Statements
Cipinion

We have audited the financial stalements of DEP Leasing Corporation (DBPLC), which
comprise the statements of inancial position as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and
the statements of comprehensive income, siatements of chamges in eguity and
statements of cash flows for the yvears then ended, and notes io the financial statements
including a summany of significant accounting policies

In our opinlon, the accompanying financial stalements present fairly, in all matersal
raspects, the financial position of the DEPLC as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and s
financial performance and its cash fows for the years then endad in accordancea with
FPhilipping Financial Reporing Standards (PFRS5), as modified by the applcation of the
financial reporting reliefs issusd by the Bangke Sentral ng Pilipinas (B53P) and approved
by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), as described in Mote 2 fo the
financial statements

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Infermational Slandards of Supreme Audit
Institutions {1SSAls), Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
repart. We are independant of the DEBFLC in accordance with the Revised Code of
Conduct and Ethical Standards for Commission on Audil Officials and Employees (Code
of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant fo our audil of the
fimancial statements in the Phiippine, and we hawve fulfilled our other ethical
responsibififies in accordance with these regquirements and the Code of Ethics. \We
balieve that the audil evidence we have obtaned is sufficient and appropriate (o provide
A Dasis tor our opinion

Emphasis of Matter

Vie draw attention 1o Mote 2 to the financlal statements, which stales that the linancial
stalemenis have been prepared in accordance with the PFRSs/Philippine Accounting




Standards (PAS), as modified by the application of the financial reporting reliefs issued
by the BSP and approved by the SEC in response to the COVID19 pandemic. The
impact of the application of the financial reporting reliefs on the financial statememts is
discussed in detail in Note 2. Our opinion 15 not gualified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, as maodified by the application of the financial
reporting reliefs issued by the BSP and approved by the SEC, as described in Mote 2 1o
the financial statements, and for such internal control as management determines is
necassary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from materal
missiatement, whather due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
DBPLC's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the DBPLC or to cease operations, or has no
realistic aiternative but to do so

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the DEPLC's financial
reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ocbjectives are 1o obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free fromn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
arror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaraniee that an audif conducted In
accordance with 1SSAls will always detect a material misstatement when it exists
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SSAls, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticiem throughout the audit. We alsa:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
thosze risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from efror, as fraud may Involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresantations, or the averride of internal control.

- Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the DBPLC s internal contral.




« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by manageament.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal
uncertainty exists refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the DBPLC's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repor to the
related disclosuras in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadaquate
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report However, future events or conditions may cause
the DEPLC to cease lo continue as a going concern

«  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statemenis represent the
underlying transactions and events in accordance with PFRSs, as modified by the
application of the financial reporting reliefs issued by the BSP and approved by the
SEC, as describad in Mate 2 to the financial statements

We communicate with thosae charged with governance regarding, amaong othwer matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our awdit

Report on Other Regulatory Requirements

Cur audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinien on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information reguired under the
Revised Securities Regulation Coge (SRC) Rule 68 in Note 26 and Revenue
Regulations 15-2010 in Note 27 to the 2021 financial statements are presented for
purposes of filing with the Securifies and Exchange Commission and the Bureau of
internal Revenue, respectively, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements., Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management and
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic financial
statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairy stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

MARIE FRAH} HAZEL §. ACEBEDO
OIC - Superviging Auditor

February 28, 2022
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(A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Development Bank of the Philippines)

DEP LEASING CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2021 and 2020
{Im Prilippine Pesa)

Note 2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Agsals
Cash and cash equivalens 5 FBT 405415 517,963 571
Lease receivables, net 51 485 384 825 625 436,157
Financial assets al amortized cost, net [ 746,633 344 665,015,253
Irveritones i 233 263 2859 T4
CHher current assels 9 1,632,773 1,208 072
1,523,203.821 1,809,E79,795
Hon-gurrent Assets
Leasa receivables, not g T4 742 B0 978 B5E 604
Fimanclal assets st amortized cost, net 7 4011, 524 533 714,212,854
F'r-:.\parr_:,l and equipmean 10 27 551 B47 29187 122
Intangible asssts 1 230280 347 504
Deferred tax assets ' 24 65,676,374 47 BOT 387
Mon-current aseed held for sate 12 2,803,671 2,803,571
Cither non-curment assets ] 9. 106 446 8. E03 463
- 1,261,745,690 1,743,008,548
TOTAL ASSETS 2,804 849 311 3,552 888,344
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Currnt Liabilities
Payables 14 19.883,304 21,461,418
Inter-agency pavables 14 676,152 5,225,489
Loans payable 18 1,162 7453 013 1 475,832,334
Leasa liability 17 5154 442 4,128,548
Trugl liabilities 18 __BB.342 106 166,763,885
feien 1.IEE:_EE[I1.U1T 1,674,400, 662
Hon-current Liabilities -
Loans payahle 16 250088 238 514 GE8. 728
Lease liability 17 15,466,161 20,280,082
Trust lishilities 18 280.5682 201 256,791,883
526,116,557 791,760,691
1,812,917 614 2,486 170,353
Stockholder's Equity 14
Share capital 1.132,000,000 1,132,000,000
Retained earnings (Deficit) (135,868 303 (45282 009)
892 031 697 1,086,717, 941
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY 2,604,945, 311 3,552,088, 144
The Mates on pages 9 fo 68 form part of these finanoil sfalemens.
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DBP LEASING CORPORATION
(A whaolly -owned subsidiary of Development Bank of the Philippines)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE IMCOME
For the years ended December 37, 3031 and 2020

{In Philippine Peso)

Mote 2021 2020
INCOME
nterest incamea 20 59,551,870 106 672 347
Legss Income 21 B3, 142 279 84 863 480
Miscelianeous income sy 3,006 6878 2,137.141
B 145,701,128 203,672,964
EXPEMNSES 23
Feracnnel expenses (26 649 G48) (28 440 329)
haintenance and other operating supenses (25, 626.816) (35,911 862}
(81,276.,462)  (64,352.291)
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS B, 424,666 139,320,677
Mon-cash expences k] 1114, 388,055) (8.507 2104
HET INCOME (LOSS) AFTER PROVISION, |
DEFRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION {19,964,289) 130,813 467
FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Irterest epEnse 16,17 (7H,221, 8048) {107 116 .276)
Bank charge (1,209} (B71)
{78,223.207) (107,117,147}
MET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX {98 187.496) 23,686 320
Imeame Tax (Expense) Banafit 24 17,837,850 (7,114 254)
Fimal Tax Expense ] (95,708} 1110, 07 5
MET INCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR {81, 446,355} 18 471,991
Other Comprehensive Income i ¥]
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (81,4486, 355) 18,471,891
The Noles an peges 9 lo 60 fovm part of theze financial stalements
&
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DBP LEASING CORPORATION

(& wholly-owned subsidiary of the Develogment Bank of the Philipgines)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
{In Philippdne Pesa)
— Note 2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Collecton of lease and interest 133,420,211 TR AT, 128
Collection of other income 3,490 424 2 687,515
L oan and financial lkase releases (139,240 334) (405,698 473}
Collection of lease and laan principal 548,070 383 B4 3,156,075
Collection of car'salary lcanfadvances 6,055 853 932,166
Collecton of depasit on finance eagses BE 450 30 TED
Payment of operating expenses (52, 150,343) (34,482 870}
Payrment of Interast cn borrowings (76 857,561) (112,788.411)
Fayment of interast on e liabdity {138 079) 1
Advances from lesseas L 24,366,432
Remitarnce of laces (17,833 4354) (A5 408, 835)
Remitance to Pag-1BIG/PhilHealth/35E (1,788,195} (1,352,233}
Net cash provided by operating activitios 4[!5-2'55_._::!?1 262,169,053
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Aequigition of officedT equipment and |T softears {4,684 304) [TO7 _BED)
Erocesds from sake of propertias 12,260 21,638
Net cash used in investing activitiss _ {4,672,134) (T06,224)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds fram Dormowings 18 710,000 G0l 1, 1880, 00, Dol
Fayments on bomowings (1,326, 152,432)  (1.010.960.850
ayrment of lease liability 17 13,7B6.025) [1.352, 298
Payment of cash dividend 19 i11,.230.034) (17.715.688)
Ket cash provided by (used in) financing activities (632,178, 196) 154, 770,657
SMET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (230,554, 156) 413,233 488
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

E.E GINNING OF YEAR Eu 517,863,571 105,730, 088
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ] 267,408,415 517,963,571

The Nodes an pages B fo 60 form part of (hase Rngncoial staterments




DBP LEASING CORPORATION
(A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Development Bank of the Philippines)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021 and 2020
(Amounts in Philippine Peso unless otherwise stated)

1. GEMNERAL ! CORPORATE INFORMATION

Farmerly named National Development Corperation — Maritime Leasing Corporation,
DBP Leasing Corporation was acquired by the Development Bank of the Philippines
(DBF) from the Mational Development Corporation (MDC) on Juna 12, 2008. DEP then
renamed the Corporation DBP Maritime Leasing Corporation. Its Securiies and
Exchange Commission registration which included the increase in the capital stock was
approved on May 11, 2009 under Corporation Registration No. 128538. DEP Maritime
Leazing Corporation (DMLC) changed its name to DBP Leasing Corporation (DBPLC)
on January 14, 2010 and its scope of business to engage in the business of leasing in all
aspects, and o arrange or underwrite or administer leases of all types of real or personal
properties and all kinds of eaquipment, machines, vehicles and facilities, especiaily
maritime vessels for the carmage of passengers, freight, cargo, vessels, goods and
merchandise of avery kind and description

On April 20, 2015, DBPLC amended its primary purpose to reflect the change in the
scope of its business as follows

a To engage. transact and deal in the business of leasing and financing in all its
aspects and forms, including that of financial leases and operating leases, with
the power to arrange, underwrite, manage, develop or administer leases of any
and all types of rental and personal properties, any and all kinds of aquipment,
machinenes, vehicles, veszelz, airplanes, appliances, marchandise and facilities,
limited to sale-lease back arrangements, hire-purchase agreements and other
lease financing schemes;

g, b3 extend credit facilities io single proprietorships, and fo industrial, commercial
or agriculiural enterprises, whether public or private in charactar, by way of loans
or direct lending, or discounting, rediscounting or factoring commercial papers or
accounts receivables, or by buying or selling contracts. leases. chattel mortgages
or other evidence of and powers of a financing company under the Financing
Company Act, as amended, and o do any act or engage in any activity that may
be directly or indirectly necessary, proper or convenient for the accomplishment

of its primary purpose

From a stockholders' equity of P8.25 million in 2004, the amount increased to PO 982
Gillion as of December 31, 2021,

.'“'.uths:l-'ized capital stock is P1.5 billion of which P1.0 billian is commen and P05 billion is
preferred. Both shares have a par value per share of P100.00. DBP's subscribed and
paid-up capital is P1.0 billion commeon shares and P132.0 million preferred shares.




DBPLC's registered address is at 2/F Pacific Star Bidg., Sen Gil J. Puyal Ave. corner
Makati Avenue, Makati City.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PRESENTATION

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Phifippine Financial
Reporting Standards/Philippine Accounting Standards (PFRSs/PASs), as modified by
the application of the following financial reporting reliefs issued by the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSF) and approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic: 1) exclude exposure of affacted borrowers fram
the computation of the past due lean ratios and the waiver of BSF documentary
requirements for restructured loans as long as these loans were current as of March 08,
2020; 2) staggered booking of allowance for credit losses over a maximum period of five
{5) years for all types of credils extended to individuals and businesses directly affected
by COVID-19 as of March 08, 2020.

Impact on the affected financial statement line items if the provision for credit losses was
measured and recorded in accordance with/PFRS 2 follows:

Affected financial line items As Reported Effect of Inclusive of
o ) Pandemic’' Effect *

Balance Sheat accounts

Lessea receivables 1,270,137 635 {5,462 507) 1,264 676 128

Financial assats al amortsed cost 1,140 067 937 (B7.015,317) 1,053 042 620

Defarrad tax assels B5. 676,374 23,119,456 B, 795,830

Retained earnings (deficilt) {139, 868,303) (68,358 368) {205, 328,671)
Income statement accournlts

Mon-cash expenses 114,388,055 G2 477 B24 206,866,770

Provision for income tax (benefif) (17, B37 850) (23,119 456) (40 957 306)

Met income {loss) (81,446 355)  (69,358,3568) {150.804,723)

TEffect of booking of prowison for credif [sses in Gccordance with PERS §
° Adfusted francial fire fems if e provision for credl lsses wes medsured and reconced in aecondanca
with PFRS 3

The amount of Allowance for credit losses (ACL) recognized for the year and the
ramaining balance as at Decembear 31, 2021 as follows:

Impact of Relief Measure on the Booking of ACL As of (Reporting Period)

Tatal AGL approved for staggered boaking 115,597,280
Recognized (amortized) allowance 23,119,436
_Remaining ACL for staggered booking 82477 824




e S —————

The Corporation received the BSP's approval for the siaggered booking of ACL on
December 29, 2020. Total allowance approved for staggered booking amounted fo
P140 423,764, The Corporation determined using the data as of December 31, 2021
that the total ACL subject for staggered booking would only be F115,587 280 due to
changes in circumstances on the accounts affected by COVID-19 pandemic that was
previously requasted for staggered booking of allowance

Mo allowance for provision for credit losses on the outstanding principal haltance of lease
and loan portfolio was recognized for the year 2020 The BSP allowed the booking of the
first instalment for probable credit logs amounting to P28,084,753 on the firsl working
day of 2021 which has been duly complied with by DBPLC. The amount was reduced to
P23,119,456 due to changes in circumstances on the accounts affected by COVID-19
pandemic as of Decamber 31, 2021, The next booking will be on January 2022 and June
2022 and every semi-annual thereafter until Jume 2025. Balance of unrecognized
(unamaortized) allowance on lease and loan portfolio amounted to P92 447 B24 as of
December 31, 2021

2.2 Basis of financial statement preparation

These financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis. The hnancal
statements preparation in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain cribical
accounting estimates It also requires management lo exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Corporation’s accounting policies

The Corporation adopts the accrual method of accounting. The financial stalements are
presentad in Philipping Paso, the Corporation’s functional currency.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accaunting policies adopted in the presemtation of the Financial Statements are sat
out below. These policies are consistently applied unless ctherwise stated

3.1. Presentation of Financial Statemeants

The financial statements are presented in sccordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statemernts

The Corporation presents ite statement of financial position in order of liguidity. An
analysis regarding recovery of assets or settlement of liability within twelve (12) montns
after the staterment of financial position date (current) and meore than twelve (12) months
sfter the statement of financial position date (non-current) is presented in Note 29 1o the
financial slatemeants

11




3.2.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

a. Amendments issued and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2021.

Amendments to PFRS 9 Financial Instruments, PAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, PFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and PFRS 16 Leases — Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2. The International Accounting Standards
Board {IASB) has published ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase &
{Amendments to PFRS 8 PAS 39 PFRS 7, FFRS 4 and PFR3 16) with
amendments that address issues that might affect financial reporting after the
reform of an interest rate benchmark, including its replacement with atternative
banchmark rates. The amendmants are effective for annual periods baginning on
or after 1 January 2021, with earlier application permitted. The amendmeants
relate to the modification of financial assets, financial habilities and lease
fiabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements, and disclosure requiremants
applying PFRS 7 to accompany the amendments regarding modifications and
hedge accounting

- Modification of financial assets, financial llabilities and lease liabilities.
The IASB introduces a practical expedient for modifications required by the
reform (modifications required as a direct consequence of the Inter-Bank
Offered Rates (IBOR) reform and made on an eccnomically eguivalent
basis). These madifications are accounted for by updating the effactive
interest rate, All other modifications are accounted for using the current PFRS
reguirements, A similar practical expedient is proposed for lessee accounting
applying PFRS 16,

- Hedge accounting reguirements. Under the amendments, hadge
accounting is not discontinued solely because of the IBOR reform. Hedging
relationships (and related documentation) must be amended to reflect
modifications ta the hedged item, hedging instrument and hedged risk.
Amended hedging relaticnships should meet all qualifying criteria to apply
hedge accounting, including effectiveness requirements

- Disclosures. In order to allow users to understand the nature and extent of
rnsks arising from the IBOR reform to which the entity is exposed to and how
the entity manages those risks as well as the entity's progress in transitiocning
from IBORs to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing
this transition, the amendments require that an entity discloses information
about (1) how the transition from interest rate benchmarks to alternalive
benchmark rates i managed, tha prograss made at the reporting date, and
the risks arising from the transition; {2} quantitative information about ron-
darivative financial assets, non-derivative financial liabilities and derivatives
that continue to reference interest rate benchmarks subject to the reform,
dsaggregated by significant interest rate benchmark; and, (3} to the extent
#at the |IBOR reform has resulted in changes to an entity's risk managemant

12
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strategy, a descriplion of these changes and how is the entity managing
those risks

The 1ASE alse amended PFRS 4 to require insurers that apply the temporary
exemption from PFRS 9 to apply the amendments in accounting for modifications
directly required by IBOR reform

The application of this amendment had no matenal impact on the Corporation’s
financial =tatemeants

= Amendment to PFRS 16 Leases — Covid-18-Related Rent Concessions. The
amendment provides lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a
COVID-19-related rent concession is 8 lease modification

The application of this amandment had no material impact on the Corporation’s
financial statemants

MNew standards and amendments effective after the reporting period ended
December 31, 2021.

Standards issued but not yet effective up o the date of the Corporation’s financial
statements are listed betow. The Corporation intends to adopt these standards when
they bacome effective.

s  Amendments te PFRS 3, Business Combination — Reference to the
Conceptual Framework (effective January 1, 2022). The amendments update
an outdated reference to the Conceptual Framework in PFRS 3 without
significantly changing the raquirements in the standard as follows

- update PFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of
the 1959 Framework,

- add to PFRS 3 a requirement that, for transactions and other avents within
the scope of PAS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21
(instead of the Conceptual Framework) to identify the labiliies it has
assumed in a business combinaticn; and

- add to PFRE 3 an axplicit statement that an acguirer does nol recoqnise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

Management is currently assessing the impact of this amendment in #s financial
statemeants

+ Amendments to PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before

Iintended Use (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
with early application parmitted). The amendments prohibit deducting from the
cost of an tem of propery, plant and eguipment any procesds from seliing items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
antity recognises the proceeds fram selling such items, and the cost of producing
those items, in profit or loss

13




Managament iz currently assessing the impact of this amendmeant in its financial
sratements.

Amendments to PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets — Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 with eary application
permitted). The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fuffiling’ & confract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the conbract’. Costs that relate directly
ta a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract {examples
would be direct labaor, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly
ta fulfilling coniracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of properdy, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The application of this amendment had ng impact on the Corporation’'s financial
statements

Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020 (effective January 7,
20223

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards — Subsidiary as a first-time adopter. The amendmeant permits 3
subsidiary that applies paragraph D18(a) of PFES 1 to measure cumulative
translation differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the
parent's date of transition to PFRSs.

- PFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the ‘10 per cent' test for
derecognition of financial liabilities. Tha amendment clarifies which fees
an antity includes when it applies the "10 par cant’ test In paragraph B33 .8 of
PFRS B in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity
ineludas anly feas paid or recaivad batweaan the antity (tha borrower) and tha
lsnder, including feas paid or recaived by either the entity or the lendar on the
ather's bahalf

- PFRS 16 Leases - Lease incentives. The amendment to [lustrative
Example 13 accompanying PFRES 16 removes from the example the
illusfration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the legssor in
arder {o resolve any potenfial confusion regarding the treatment of lease

incentives that might arse because of how lease incentives are illustrated in

e e i e e -wwﬂmﬂwrqu
- L]

'T that example

\ - PAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements. The
k amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 for
B entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a
X biclogical asset using a present value technigue. This will ensure
i consistency with the requirements of PFRES 13

: Management s currently assessing the impact of these amendments in its
s financial statements.
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PFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. The new standard establishes principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts
within the scope of the standard. The cbjective of the standard is to ensure that
entities provide relevant information in a way that faithfully represents those
contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to
assess the effect that contracts within the scope of the standard have on the
entity’s financial position, financial peformance and cash flows. The standard is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, with earlier
application permitted

The new standard will not have an impact on the disclosures and amounts
recognized on the Corporation's financial staterments

Amendments to PFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - Amendmaeants to PFRS 17
and Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying PFRS 9
{Amendments to PFRS 4). The amendment includas

- [Deferral of the date of initial application of PFRS 17 by two years to annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and change the fixed expiry
date for the temporary sxempiion in PFRS 4 Insurance Confracis from
applying PFRS § Financial Instruments, 50 that entities would be required to
apply PFRS 9 for annual penods beginning on or after January 1, 2023

- Additional scope exclusion for credit card contracts and similar contracts that
provide insurance coverage as well as optional scope exclusion for loan
contracts that transfer significant insurance risk.

- Recognition of insurance acquisition cash flows relating o expected contract
renewals, ncluding fransition provisions and guidance for insurance
acquisition cash flows recognised in a2 business acquired in a8 business
cambnation,

Clanfication of the application of PFRS 17 in interim financial statements
allowing an accounting policy choice at a reparting antity level

- Clarfication of the application of confractual service margin [(CSM)
atiributable to investment-relurn service and investment-related service and
changes to the corresponding disclosure reguirements,

- Extansion of the risk mitigation option to include reinsurance contracts held
ard non-financial derivativas,

- Amendments to require an entity that at initial recognition recagnises losses
On Onerous insurance contracts issued to alse recognise a gain on
reinsurance contracts held

- Simplified presentation of insurance contracts in the statement of financial
position 50 that entities would present insurance contract azsets and
liabilities in the statement of financial position determined using porifolios of
insurance contracis rather than groups of insurance contracts,

- Additional trangition relief for business combinations and additional transtion
relief for the date of application of the risk mitigation cpticn and the use of
the fair value transition approach.

-  Baveral emall amendments reganding miner application issues

The new standard will not have an impact on the disclosures and amounts
recognized on the Corperation’s financial statements
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3.3

Amendments to PFRS 17 Insurance Contracts — Initial Application of PFRS
17 and PFRS 9 — Comparative Information. The amendment provides for
transition requiremants of PFRS 17 for entities that first apply PFRS 17 and
PFRS 2 al the same time. The amendment regards financial assets for which
comparative information is presented on initial application of PFRS 17 and PFRS
8, but where this information has not been restated for PFRS 9. Under the
amendment, an entity is permittad 1o present comparative information about a
financial asset as if the classification and measuremant reguirements of PFRS 9
had been applied to that financial asset before. The option is available on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, In applying the classihication overlay o a
financial asset, an entily is not required to apply the impairment reguiremants of
PFRES ¢

There are no changes to the transition requirements in PFRS 9.

The new standard will not have an impact on the disclosures and amounts
recognized on the Corporation’s financial statements

Amendments to PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (effeciive for annual
pariods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 deferred to January 1, 2023). The
amendmeants aim 1o promote consistency in applying the requirements by halping
companias detarming whether, in the statement of financial position, debt and
other liabilties with an uncerain settfement date should be classified as current
{due or potentially due to be settled within gne yaar) or non-curmant,

Management is currently assessing the impact of this amengment in its financial
statements

Amendments to PAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction (effective for annual pericds beginning on or
after January 1, 2023), Tha amendments clarify how companies account for
deferrad tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning abligations.

Management is currently assessing the impact of this amandment in its financial
statements

Financial instruments

Initial recognition

A financial asset or financial liability s recognized in the statements of financial position
when the Corporation bacomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial instruments are classified as financial assets and financial liabilities or equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement




Clazsification of financial instruments

Financial Assets
Financial assats at fair valua through profit or ioss (FVWTPL)

Financial assets measurad at FVTPL shall consist of the following;

+ Financial assets held for trading (HFT), which include stand-alone andfor
embedded denvatives, except a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract
or designated and effective hedging instruments, as defined in PFRS 9: and

= Financial assets designated at FVTPL as defined in PFRS ©

P

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FWTOGCH)

A financial assel measured at FVTOCI shall meet both of the following conditions:

= The financial asset is held within a business modef whose objective |s acheved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

* The contractual terms of the financial assat give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount cutstanding.

3. Financial assets measurad at amortised cost

A financial asset that is a debt instrument, other than those that are designated at

FVTPL, which meet both of the following conditions:

= The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is fo hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are SPPI on the prnncipal amount outstanding.

The Corporation’s short-term investments, Loans receivable - others. accounts
receivable, accrued interest receivable and car loan receivable are under this category,

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities shall be classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interast method, except for

1. Financial liabilities measurad at FVTPL. This shall consist of the following:

a. Financial liabilities HFT, including denvative liabilities that are not accounted for
as hedging instruments, and
b. Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL

2 Financial kabilities which shall be subseguently measured in accordance with the
previsions of PFRS 9, as follows,

a, Financial liakilities that arise when a transfer of a finandcial assei does nol qualify
for derecognition or when the confinuing involvemeant saporoach applies
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b. Financial guarantee contracts, as defined under PFRS §;
c. Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate; and
d. Contingent consideration recognized by an acquirér in a business combination.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assels

A financial asset or, where applicable. a part of financial or part of a group of similar
financial assets, is derecognized when (1) contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire: or {2) transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of
the financial asset and either has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, ar (3) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of the financial assel, but has assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows o one or more recipients in an arrangement; or (4) neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, but not
retainad contral of the financial asset

Cinancial fabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when fhe obligation under the liability s discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender or
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability is modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the anginal financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability, and the difference in the respective
carmying amount is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of assels camed al amortised cost

Loans and receivables that are measured at amortised cost

DBEPLC being a corporation with simple operations, as classified by the Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas [BSP), followed the guidelines provided in BSP Circular 1011 in loan

clazsification and setting up allowance for credit logses, specficaly Appendx
181N 1 of the Manual of Fegulations far Non-Bank Financial Intermedianas

Loans and other credit exposures with unpald principal andior interest are clagsified and
provided with allowance for credit lossaes (ACL) based on the number of days of missed
payments

a4, Property and Equipment
F‘mpény and equipment are initially recognized at cost Af the end of sach financial

reporting period, property and eguipment sre measwed & cost ess accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairmeant loss
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The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for #s intended use.

Major repairs and maintenance are capitalized, Items below the threshold of P15.000
and semi-expendable tems are adjusted to conform with COA Circular No. 2016-008
dated December 28, 2018

Depreciation 1s computed using the straight-line methad aver the estimated useful life of
the depreciable assets. Amount subject for depreciation is net of 10 per cent residual
value

The estimated life of the Corporation's property and equipment and foreclosed
propery/assels are as follows

IT equipment S yaars
Cffice equipment o yBars
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Right-of-use assel Lease term
Transportation equipmeni, motor vehicles ¥ years
Building 30 years
Leasehold improvements Lease tarm
Foreclosed properties/assats 10 years

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depraciaton and
accumulated impairment loss, if any, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefit is expected to arise from continuing use of an asset. Any gain or loss
arising from derecognition of the asset is included in the statement of comprehensive
income in the year the asset is derecognized,

Fully depraciated assets are retained in the books until they are no longer in use and no
further charge for depreciation is made.

3.5. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated &t cost and amortised on a stralght-lina method over the
eslimated useful life of the assets. The Corporation's infangible assets are assessed for
impairment when there is indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.

he Corporation's intangible assets comprise of compuler software and Document
Management System (DMS). The estimated life of the Corporation’s intangible assets
are as follows,

Computar software 3 years
DMS 3 years

-
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18, Man-current Asset Held-for-Sale

Mon-current Assets Held-for-Sale (NCAHFS) include vessels or equipment acguired
through repossession or foreclosure that the Corporation intends to sell and will be
disposed of within 12 months from the date of classification as held-for-zale. In order for
the properties acguired through foreclosure or rapossession to be classfied as
NCAHFS, the Corporation included in its criteria that there should be an existence of a
buyer and that the sale can be completad within 12 manths.

The Corporation classifies a nen-current asset (or disposal group) as held-for-sale if its
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. In the event that the sale of the asset is extended beyond 12
maonths, the extension of the period required to complete the sale does not preclude an
agset from being classified as held-for-sale i the delay is caused by events or
circumstances beyond the Corporation’s control and as long as there is a ready buyer.

Assets classified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of their camrying amounts,
Immmediately prior to their classification as held-for-sale, and their fair values less casts to
sall

The Corporation shall recognize an impairment loss for any initial or subseguent write-
down of the assel at fair value less cost to sell. Gain for any subsegueant increase in fair
value less cost to sell of an asset is recognized to the extent of the cumulative
impairment loss previgusly recognized. Assets classified as held-for-sala are not subject
to deprecigtion, If the Corporation has classifisd an asset as held-for-sale, but the criteria
for it to be recognized as held-for-sale are no longer satisfied, the Corporation shall
cease to classify the aszet as held-far-sale

The gain or loss arising from the sale or remesasurement of held-for-sale assets =

recognzed in profit or loss and included as part of Other Income {Expenses) In the
statement of comprahensive income

3.7.  Other Assets

Diher assets periain to other resources controlled by the Corporation as a result of pasi
events, They are recognized in the financial stalerments when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow and the assel has a cost or value that can be measured
refiably,

Dther current assets comprise prepayments, deferred charges and deposits
Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid Prepayments are
initially recorded as assets and measured at cost. Subseguently, these are charged as
expensa in the statement of comprehensive Income as they are consumead In operaticns
or expire in the passage of time. Deferred charges represent amount of excess Minimum
Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) paid by the corporation over the computed Regular
Corpgrate Income Tax (RCIT) computed using the current income fax rate. Deposits
represent amount deposiled/paid in advance for rentals of office equipment, office space
and parking space. Deposits are initially recorded at cost and reversed upon recenpt of
refund from suppliers
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present value using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the nsk specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provisions due to passage of ime is recognized as
interast expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted to reflact the current best estimate

In those case where possible cutflow of economic resource as a result of present
cbligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount 1o be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no Hability is recognized in the financial stalements. Similarly,
possible inflows of economic benefits to the Corporation that do not yat meet the
recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not

recognized in the financial statements.
3.11. Stockholders’ Equity
Share Capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been ssued

Retained eamnings {deficit) represent all current and prior period results as reported in
the statement of comprehensive income, reducedi{increased) by the amount of

dividends declared.
3.12. Revenue and cost and expenses recognition

Revenues comprise interest income on loans, receivable financed, deposits and
placements, lease income from finance lease and operating lease contracts and other

miscellaneous income.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benafits will
flow to thie Corporation and the amount can be measured reliably. The following specific
recagnition criteria of income and expenses must also be met before revenue is
recagnzad,

Interest — Interesl income and expenses are recognized in profit or loss for all
instruments measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is @ method of calcutating the amorized cost of a
financial asset or a financial hability and of allocating the interest Income ar interast
expanse over a relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability.

The Income on financial lease receivable is allocated over the lease ferm on a
systematic and rational basis. The excess of aggregate rentals over the cost of the
leasad proparty constitutes the “Deferred Lease Income”

Lease income from operating lease - Revenue from operating lease contracts is
recognized in the statement of comprehensivae income on a straight ine basis owver

e lease term
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Uther non-current assets comprise of foreciosed properfiesiassets and Other Assets-
Leasing and Financial Management System (LFMS) Foreclosed properlies/assets are
initially recorded at the carrying amount of the leasafioan {outstanding balance adjusted
for any unamortized premium or discount less aliowancs for cradit iosses) plus booked
accrued interes! less allowance for credit losses plus transaction costs incurred Lpan
acguisition. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of the depreciable assets. Other Assets-LFMS comprised of cost of system

development and &nhancement but has not been in operation as of the balarce sheet
date

3.8, Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities which comprise loans payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses
payables, lease deposits and other liabilities other than tax-related and other intar-
agency payables are recognized when the Corporation becomes a party to the
contractual terms of the instrument. Al interesi-related charges are presented as part of
Financial Expenses in the statement of comprehensive income

Loans payable represents amount drawn from the Corporation’s loan facilities. They are
recognized at proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Fayables and inter-agency payables are initially recognized at fransaction price and
subsequently measured at amortised cost less seitlement payments,

I'rust liabilities are recognized at contract price.

Dividends to the national government are recognized upon declaration of the
Corporation

3.8. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsat and the net amount is reported in the
statemant of financial position if, and enly if, there is currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settie on a net basis, or ko
realize the asset and settle liability, simultanecusly.

3.10. Provisions and Contingencies

Frovislons are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of
the outflow may still be uncertain. A present cbligation arises from the presence of a
legal ar constructive commitment that has been resulted from past events

Frovisions are measured at the estimatad expendifure reguired to seffle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available al the end of the reparting
penod, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation
Where there are a number of similar cbligations, the likelihood that an cutfiow will be
required in settlement iz determined by considering the class of obiigation as a whole
When time value of money (s material, long-term provisions are discounted to their
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. Other income — Other income is recognized in the penod in which these are earnad.

Operating cost and expenses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
upon tha utilization of assets or services or at the data they are incurred. Al financial
expensas are repaorted in profit or loss on an accrual basis, except capitalized barrowing
cost which are included as part of the cost of related qualifying asset

3.13. Leases

Finance leases where the Corporation transfers substantially all the nisk and benefits
incidental o the ownership of the leased item 1o the lessee, are included in the
statemant of financial position under ‘Finance Lease Receivables” account. A finance
laase receivable is recognized at an amount equal to net investment in the igase. The
difference betwasen the gross lease receivable and the net investment in the lease is
recognized as unearned lease income. All income resulling from the receivable is
included as part of "Lease Incoma” in the statement of comprahansive incomea

The Corporation is the lessor under the finance lease

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and bensfits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating
lease is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income an a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating lease are added
o the camying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term
Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the year they are eamead

The Corporation is both a lessor and lessee under the operating lease.

Oiperating lease, in which the Carporation is a lessee to the contract recognizes Right-of-
use asset eguivalent to the present value of lzase rentals for the contract period
including advance payments

The Corporatian is a lessee of an office space reflected on the balance sheet as right-of-
use asset and a lease liability equivalent to the present value of lease rentals for the
contract period, including advances. Lease payment is allocated between a reduction of
a lease liability and an interest expense. The Corporation classifies its right-of-use asset
in a consistent manner to its property and equipment

Lease i either non-cancellable or may only be cancelled by incurring a substantive
termination fee. The Corporation is prehibited from selling or pledging the underiying
lmased assets as securty and must keep the property in goeod state of repair and retain
the propery in their original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Corporation
miugt incur maintenance fees on such items in accordance with lease contract

23




3.14. Residual Value of leased asseis and deposit on lease contracts

The residual value of leased assets represants the estimated praceads from the disposal
of the laased assat at the and of the leasa tarm in a finance lease, which approximates
the amount of the lease deposil paid by the leszee al the inception of the lease. Al the
end of the lease term, the residual value of the leased asszet is generally applied against
the lease deposit of the lessee. The residual value of the leased assel (& presanted as
part of the Finance lease receivables in the statement of financial pasiion

3.15. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a “gualifying asset’ or an assel that necessarily takes a substantial pericd to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are included as part of the cost of the asset. Other barrowing
costs which consist of interest and other cost that the Corporation incurs in connection
with borrowing of funds are recogniZzed as expense in the yeaar i which these costs are
incurred using the effective interest method

4.16. Income Taxes
Current tax

Current tax assets or liablities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid
at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal pariods to which they relate. based on the taxable income for the
year. Taxable income differs from net income reported In the statement of
comprahansive income because it excludes item of incomea and expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further exclude items that are never taxable o
deductible. All changes to current tax assels or liabilties are recognized as componant
of income tax expense in statement of comprehensive income

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using liability method, on temporary difference at the end
af the reporting period betwean the tax base of assets and liabilities and their cammying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain
exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temparary differences
and deferrad tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differances and the
carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the taxable temporary differences can
be utilized. Unrecognize deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future laxable
profit will be available to allow such deferred assets to ba recoverad.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the fax rates thal are axpacted to

apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settied providad such
rates have been enacted or substantively enacled at the end of the reporting pariod
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporing
period and reduced to the extent that is probable that sufficient taxable profil will be
available to allow or part of the deferred tax asset to be ulilized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabiities and assets reflects the fax consequences
that would foliow from the manner in which tha Garporation expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the camrying amount of its assets and liabilities, Most
changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
gxpensae in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in
other comprehensive incomea or directly in eguity. respectively

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Corporation has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax asseis against current tax habities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

3.17. Employee benefits
a. Retirement benefits

The Corporation provides retirement benefits to employees based on the provisions
of The Labor Code of the Philippines. Accrued amount of relirement pay 15 prasented
undar Payables account in the statement of financial position.

b, Compensaled ADSences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days remainng
at the end of the reporting period. They are included in the Payables account in the
statement of financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Corporation
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlerment.

3.18. Related Party Transactions

Felated party transactions are fransfer of resources, servicas or cbligations between the
Corporation and its related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influenca over the party in making financial and
operating decisions.

In considering each possible related party relaticnship, attention e directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely on tha legal form
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3.19. Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Event after the reporting perod pertains to an event’s which could be favorable or
unfavorable, that occurs between the end of the reporting period and the date that the
financial statements are authorized for issue. Post year end events up to date of the
auditor's report that provide additional information about the Corporation's position at
financial reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post
year end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial
statements, when material.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Corporation's financial statements in accordance with PFRSs
requires management fo make judgments and estimates thal affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed fo be reascnable under the
circumstances. Actual results may ultmataly differ from these estimates

E=ztimates

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a significant nisk of
causing a matenal adjustment ta the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

rnext financial year

Eztimation of allowence Impaiment of Lease Receivables and Financial Assefs af
Amortized Cost

The Corporation reviews its lease recaivables and financial assets at amorlized cost at
j@ast or an annual basis 1o assess whether additional provision for credit losses should
be recognized. In particular, judgement by management is reguired in the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance
required. Such estimates are based on assumptions and number of faclors and actual
results may differ, resulting in future changes 1o the allowance for credit losses,

Provision for probable credit losses recognized for the years 2021 and 2020 amounted
to P107.085,316 and P4 222,349 respectively.

Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment and foreclosed assels/proparties

The Corporation estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and foreclosed
assets/properties based on the period over which the assets are expected to be
available for use, The estimated useful lives of property and equipment and foreclosed
assets/properties are reviewed periodically and are updated If expactations differ fram
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence
and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.
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In addition, estimation of the useful Ives of property and equipment and foreclosed
assets/properties is based on collective assessment of industry practice, Internal
technical evaluation and expenence with similar assets. It is possible, however, that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought
about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and
circumstances, A reduction in the estimated useful ives of property and aguipmeant and
foraclosed assets/properlies would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease
non-currant assats.

The estimated useful lives of investment properties, property and eguipment and
foreciosed assets/properties are set out in MNote 3.4

Estimation of impairment of properly and equipment, foreclosed assefsiproperfies and
non-currant assets held for sale

The Corporation assesses impairment on asseis whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the camrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable
The factors that the Corporation considers important which could trigger an impairment
review include the following:

- Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected futune
oparating results;

- Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for
overall business, and

- Sgnificant nagative industry or economic trends

The Corporation recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount i3 the higher of the
assets' net selling price or value in use The net selling price is the amount obtainable
from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less cost to sell while value in
use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
centinuing use of an asset and from its dizsposal at the end of Its useful life,

Allowance for impairment losses on Foreclosed assefs/properes amounted 1o
P7.082 711 as of December 31, 2021 (Mote 2). There are no impairment sses
recognised on foreclosed assets/properties for the year 2021 and P1,220,503 for the
year 2020, and no impairment losses on property and egquipment and Non-Current
Assets Held for Sale for the years 2021 and 2020

Realizabiity of deferred fax assats

The Corporation reviews its deferrad tax assets at each reporting date and reduces the
eamying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utllized. The
Corporation's assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible
temporary differances is based on the projected taxable income in the following periods.
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Judgments

In the process of applying the Corporation’s accounting palicies, Management has made
the following judgments, apart from those invaolving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recegnized in the financial statements:

Determination of functional curmency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Corporation, the functional currency is determined to be the Philippine Peso

Classficaiion of fnancial insfruments

The Corporation exercises judgments in classifying a financial instrument, or ils
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability, or an
equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the confractual arrangement and
the definittons of a financial asset or liability. The substance of a financial instrument,
rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the statements of financial position

The Corporation’s financial assels and liabilities are presentad in Notes 28 and 30

Deferminaton of falr value of financial assels

The Corporation carries cerlain financial assets at fair value, which requires extensive
use of accounting estimates and judgment While significant components of fair value
measurement wera determined using verifiable objective evidence, the amount of
changes in fair value would differ f the Corporation utiized a different valuation

methodology. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets would affect profit and
loss and eguity

Defermination Whether an Arrangement Comlaing a Lease

The Corporation assasses whether an arrangement contains a lease based on PFRS
16, as disclosed in Note 3.13.

Classification of leases

The Corperation has enfered into vanous lease agreements both as a lesses and a
lessor. Crfical judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease
agreement as either an operating or finance lease by locking at the transfer or retention
of significant nsk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the
agreements.

Caorparation as Lassar

Interest earned on finance |lease arrangements amounted o PB3. 142 279 and
FPo4 853 480 in 2021 and 2020, respectivaely, as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial
statements.
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Corporation a5 Lesses

Az a lessee, total rental expenses recognized under lease incurred from the leases
amounted ta P270.980 and P3,299.475 in 20271 and 2020, as disclosed in Note 23

Evalualing Defarmed Tax

n determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Corporaton takes into
gcocount the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and Interest
may be dus The Corporation believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for
=l open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretation of
tax laws and prior experience, This assessment relies on estimates and assumgptions
and may involve a senes of judgments about future events. Mew information may
become available that causes the Corporation to change its judgment regarding the
sdequacy of existing tax labilities; such changes to tax liabilties will impact tax expense
in the period that such a determination is made

Deferred tax assets recognized amounted to PES.GTE3T4 and P47 697 387 as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as dizclosed in Mote 24
5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and shori-term
nvestments maturing not more than 91 days from date of purchase

= 2021 2020
Cash in bank 162,582,000 382.700.481
Short-term investments 124 687 325 125,123,080
Emeargency Contingency Fund ' 100,000 100.000
Petty cash R oo 40000 40,000

Cash in bank earns interest at rates based on bank deposit rates

Short-term investments represent fixed term deposit with temporary shori-term gquidity
with 0.250 per cent to 0.375 per cent interest rate per annum

Interast income from deposits in banks and placements reported in the statement of
comprehensive income totaled P483,545 and P550,373 for the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Final tax expense recognized related lo the interest income from deposits in banks and
placements amounted to PSS 709 and P110,075 for the years ended [December 31

2021 and 2020, respactivealy.
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% LEASE RECEIVABLES, NET

s account representis total amounts to bé collected from the lessees which are due in

mstalimants on the lease agreement. The finance leases arising from conversion of
repossessed vassals were glso ingluded

= 3 _ 2021 2020
Finance lease receivables 1,144 927 74T 1,387 880,722
Residual value of leasad assets 357 674,650 422 391,571
Deferred finance lease receivable __ {(152B24,282) (211,078,638)
Net investment in finance lease receivables 1,349,978,135 1,599,293,655
Cperating lease receivable 912,365 812,385

1,350,890,500 1,600,206,020
_Allowance for impairment (BD.752Z 863) (35,913,258)
Lease receivables, net 1,270,137,635 1,564,292,761
Current portion consists of

- ) 2021 2020
'Finance lease receivables 553,205, 169 649 736,854
Allowance for credit losses _ (S7.810,343) (£4,300,737)

- 485,394, 826 625,436,157

Dp&rmlng lease receivable 812,365 012,365
Allowance for credit losses - (912 365) (912.365)

T = ) 0 0
TOTAL ) 496,394,826 625436157

Men-current partion consists of
e = === - 2021 2020

Finance lease receivables TS5, 772 565 549 556,761
Allowance for credit losses (22,030,157  (10.700.157)

TIDTA.L 774,742,809 938,856,604

An analysis of DBPLC's finance lease receivables as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is
shown below:

o 2021 2020
Maturity of gross investment in; - ' B
Within one year 540,014 424 583,101,343
Beyond one year but not bayond five yvaars 595,615,921 536,435 403
Beyond five years 8267402 168,443,976

1,144,927,747  1,387,980,722

Resdual value of leased assets

Within one year 92,139,148 160,437,038
Beyond one year but not bevoend five vears 251,481 445 226,948 248
Beyond five years - 14,054 056 35,005 284
- 357,674, EEI:I 422,391,571
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Deferrad financa lease ravanuse

Within ane year 78,948 404
Beyond one yaar but not bayond fiva years 73.022 822
Beyond five years 853,038

152,624,262

93801488
113.647 B&1
_4.829, 2688
211,078,638

1,602,602, 397

Gross finance lease recelvabla
_Deferred finance lease revenue

(152.624,262)

1,810,372,283
(211,078,638)

MNet investment in ﬂna nce lease | re-.:ewahlu 1,349, 878,135

1,599,293,655

The residual value of leased assets represents the estimated proceeds from the disposal
of the |esased assel at the end of the lease term, which approximates the amount of the
lease deposit paid by the lessee at the inceplion of the lease. At the end of the lease
term, the residual value of the leazed asset is generally applied against the lease deposit
of the leszsea. The residual value of the leased assel iz prezented ag part of the Finance

Leaze Recelvables in the statement of financial position

summany analysis of DBPLC s net investment in finance lease receivables follows

- - 2011
Due within one yvear 553,205,169
Due beyond one yaar but not beyond five years ¥ra 074 544
Bayond five years . 22,698 422
1, 345 978,135

2020
649,736,894
742 735 770
199,820,991

h 559 283, EEE

Impairad finance |ease receivables amounted to P81,281,050 and P59,138 562 as of

Decamber 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

[ £ FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST, NET

This account consists of the following:

) _ 2021
Loans recaivable = others 1, 453 IB3, 353
Unearned revenuafincomes __[171.283,781)

1,673 804,582
(218,235,624)

1.282,099,5T2
Allowance for credit losses

{150,541 ,651)

1,455 569,358
(92,073,230)

K 131,657,921
Cither receivables:

1,363,496,128

Interest raceivable 13,864,975
Accounts receivable 5,938,095
Inter-agency receivables 1,007 535
Car inan receivable ) 340 5489
25,151 165
Aliowance for credit losses (16,651,139)
B.500,016

TOTAL

1,140,057,237

16,240,880
10,334,345
481,805
1,548,149
EH EI'.IE 869
(12,873,850)
15,732,019

_1,379,228,147
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curmant portion consists of

Loans raceivable — others
Allowance for credit losses

2021
858,706,802

2020
731,833,830
(81,8353,548)

- o N T-'!EI 176 EI'?EI_ 650, 000,584
interest receivable 13,864,975 16,240,880
Aliowance for credit losses {6,570,584) (2,686, 349)

S SRR — 7,294,386 13,563,931
Inter-agency receivables 1.007,535 481,895

_Allowance for credit losses = (227,820) (£27,820)

= 779,715 254,075

Accounts recaivables 9,938,006 10,334,945
Allowanca for credit lossas (9,729 531) (9,835 882)
FE—— I 208,565 499,063

Car loan receivable 188,759 B30, 7989
Allowanca for credit losses - {123,188} ~ {123,198)

75600 707,600

TOTAL == 738,633,344 665,015,253

Mon-current portion consists of

o 2021 2020
Loans receivabie — others 423 382 770 723,635,428
Allowance for credit losses - (22009927}  (10,135,884)

401382843 2 T13 d_.!l_ﬁﬂ-gl

-Q:E_T!EE'D_@EE;“:’E_NE . ]"'1..?5'3 717,350

TOTAL -IIEH 524,593 714,212, 894

The allowance for impairment is computed based on the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
{BSP) basic guidelines in setting up of Allowance for Credit Losses.

DBPLC, being a financial institution with simple operaticn applied the guidelines af BSP
Circular 1011 in estimating its provision for credil lossas

Loans Receivables — Olthers

This account represents total amounts to be collected from the borrowers under
Amortized Commarcial Loan, Receivable Financing/Discounting and Short-Term Loan
facility,. The breakdown of loans receivable-others as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

are as foliows:
Loans receivable — othars
Lingarned revenuaiincomes

'H'é't_ii%;'erﬁi:%'ér'ﬁi"in leans receivable - others

_Lmns receivable — others, net

o
1,453 383 353
{171,283 781
1,282,099,572

{150,541,651)

1,131,557,921

2020

1,673, E-D-'-'l Bg2

1 45-5 539 358

(92,073,230

1,363,496,128

—
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2021 2020
Maturity of gross investment in:
Within one year 581,381,718 BE3, 326,912
Bayond one year but not bevond five years 460,538,850 TDB 5389 575
Beyond five years __ 1464785 103938495
1,453,383,353 1,673,804,982
== ——— 2021 2020
Uneamed revenus/income
Within one yvear 132 674,918 131,392 982
Bayond ane year but not beyond five years 38 524 821 B5 499 028
Beyond five years = 83,044 1,343,818
171,283,781 218,235,624
2021 2020
Allowiance for impairment
Within one year 128,531,724 81,933,348
Beyond ane year but not beyond five years 21,996,119 8,508,551
Beyond five years — ___13808 1631333
150,541,651 82,073,230

Summary analysis of DBPLC's net investment in loans receivables — others foliows

2021 2020

Due within one year 858,706,802 731,833,530
Due beyond one year but not beyond five years 422.011.929 21,040 545
_Beyond five years S— 1,380.841 102,584,879
1,282,099,5T2 1,455,569,358

lmpaired loans and recaivables financed amounted to P161,892 258 as of December 31,

2021 and 2020,

Income an lease and loan receivables

Leasm and interest income an finance lease recaivables and loans raceivable — othars
are presented in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Interest Income on Loans (Naote 20)
_Lease Income (Note 21)
Total

2021

2020

50 068,425 106,121,974

B3, 142,279

84,863 480

142,210,704 200,985 454

BSP Reporting

Details of finance lease receivable and loans receivable — others as to industry sector
and collateral typa at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
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al As fo -ndu-stry

Sarvicas
Manufacturing
Real Estate
Public Sactor

Wholesale and Retail Trade
Mining and Quarrying

___2021
1,027,045,680
587,501,829
322,128,024
260,015,689
136,385,213
68,619,011

718,961,564
441,495 125
322,830,933
40,855,567
B4 167 492

Total 2,401,695,556 2,927,788,889
b} Az to collateral
- - 2021 2020
Secured
Property under finance lease 1,270,137,655  1,566,852,507
Chattel mortgage 685,980,942 853,248 415
Unsecured - 445,576,679 507,637 867
Total 2,401,695,556 2 927,788,889

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the non-parforming loans (NFLs) fully-covered Dy
allowance for credit losses amounted to P1,404,000.

g, INWENTORIES

Inventories represent amount of office supplies on hand as of Dacember 37, 2021 and
2020. Inventories recognized as expense for the years 2021 and 2020 amcunt 1o
P247 570 and P315, 160, respectively -as disclozed in Note 23,

- OTHER ASSETS

This account consists of the following:

I
. 2021 2020 |
'Foreclosed property/assets 6,075,757 7,075,083 |
Other Assets - LFMS 1,814,000 1,520,000 |
Prepayments 1,632,773 1,205,072 |
Refundable deposits 1,216,689 1,204 389
10,739,219 11,008,534
Current T 1,832,773 1,205,072
Non-current 9,106,446 9,803,462
10,739,219 11,008,534
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Foreclosed Assets/Propertles

Other non-current assets include chaftel or personal properties acquired through
repossession or foreclosure that are available for sale or re-lease or charter

The movement of chattel or personal propertias are as follows

e S
Particulars MV Gloria 1 ""E‘:J‘:;:::: ‘-"_  Total
e b
Beginning balance 0 15,172,140 15,172,140
Adjustments/Reclassifications 0 0 0
Ending balance 0 15,172,140 15,172,140
Accumulated Depreciation
Baginning balance 0 1,003,336 1,003, 336
Depreciation 0 1,003,338 1.003.336
Adjustments/Reclassifications 0 0 0
Ending balance 0 2,006,672 2,006,872
Accumulated Impainment
Beginning balance 0 7.089,711 7,089,711
Irmpairment 0 L] 0
_Adjustments/Reclassifications 0 R 0
Ending balance . 0 7,089,711 7,089,711
Met Book Value 0 6,075,757 6,075 7567
2020 _
Particulars ~ MvGloriat “E’:}?ﬁ;’%“;:"’_ Total
Cost
Beginning balance 8,108 333 15,172,140 23, 280473
Adjustments/Reclassifications (8,108.333) D (B108.333)
_Ending balance 0 15,172,140 15,172,140
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning balance 134,710 0 124,710
Depreciation 231,138 1,003 336 1,234 474
Adjustments/Reclassifications (365,848 o {3655,848)
Ending balance 0 1,003,336 1,003,336
Accumulated Impairment
Beginning balance 3,618,011 7,083,711 10,707 722
mpalrment 1,220,903 0 1,220,903
Adjustments/Reclassifications (4.838914) -0 (4,838,914}
Ending balance 0 7,088,711 7,089,711
Net Book Value 0 7,079,083 7,079,083

Depreciation charges were recognized for 2021 and 2020 amounting to P1,003,336 and
=4 734 474, respectively, and wers presented under Non-Cash Expenses in Note 23

35




In 2020, impairment loss racognized on MV Glona 1 amounted to P1,220,803 The
Corporation classified and presented the foreciosad property with net carrying amount of
P2 803,571 as Non-Current Asset Held-For-Sale (NCAHFS) for comparative penods
Dacember 31, 2021 and 2020

Prepayments consist of prepaid insurance, prepaid taxes and octhar prepaid expenseas.
Excess income tax payment as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted io
P1.401,509 and P1.025,820, respectively

Refundable deposits for the year 2021 and 2020 pertain to the three months security
deposit on lease of office spaca refundable at the end of the lsase term. Additional
deposit of P12,320 was recognized in 2021 relative to the procurement of internet
servica for the new office

Leasing and Financial Management System (LFMS) praviously reported under
Intangitle Assets amounting to P1,520,000 was reclassified to Other Assets — LFMS for
the comparative period December 31, 2021 and 2020 as the system has not been in
operation as of December 31, 2021.

10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The composition and movement in this account are as fallows:
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Depr':n;;iatiun charges were recognized for 2021 ang 2020 amounting to PE6.153,245 and
P1.681,790, respectively and were presented under Non-cash expenses in Mote 23
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In 2021, the Corporation sold IT equipment and furniture and ficture with net book value
of P3,034 for P12,280 resulting to a gain of P8, 197 prasented under miscellaneous
income account. Likewise, in 2020, the Corporation sold IT equipment, office eguipment
and furniture and fixture with net book value of P45,701 for P91,636 resulting to a gain of
P44 935 prasented under miscellaneous income accournt

Mo property and aquipment and any portion thereof is held as collateral

Right of use asset is equivalent to the present value of lease payments over the period
of five years,

11. INTAMNGIBLE ASSETS

The composition and movement of this account are as follows

2021 2020

Cost

Beginning balance 761,238 681,238
_Additicns - 28,800 80,000

Ending balance = 781,038 761,238

Accumulated Amortization

Baginning balance 413,730 266,036

Amaortization for the year (Note 23) 147,058 147 694

Ending balance I 560,788 413,730

Book Value . 230,250 347,508

12 NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

The account perdains o a group of assets that will be disposed of through sale or
otherwise, in a single transaction. Thus, these assets are available for immediate sale at
its present condition and management believes that such sale is highly probable,

In 2020, the Board of Directors approved the disposal of a vessel with net book value of
F2.903,571 on an "as is where is” basis sale

The Corporation reclassified and presented the property from Other Mon-Current Assets
- Foreclosed Property/Assets to NCAHFS for the comparative periods December 31,
2021 and 2020

The carrying amounts of NCAHFS in 2021 and 2020 are shown below:

- 2021 2020
Coast - 2,803,571 2,903 571
Accumulated impairmant =~ 0 0 20 . I * 1
Met carrying amount 2,903,571 2,903,571
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of non-current held-for-sale at the beginning and
end of 2021 is shown balow:

Balance at January 1, net of accumulated impairment 2,803,571
Additions 0
Disposals a
Reclassifications . T\
Balance at December 31, net of accumulated impairmeant 2,803,571

13. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Reconciliation of the allowance for credit and impairment losses!

] 2021 2020
Allowanca for Credit Losses, January 1
Financial assets at amonised cost 104,947,080 103,284 477
Lease receivables 35,913,258 33,353,513
impairment Losses
Other non-current assets B 11,828,625 10,707,724
- 152,788,964 147,345,712
Provisions for cradit losses for the year 107,085 316 4 222,349
Impairment losses . " 1,220,803
At December 31 259 874,280 152,788,964

Allocations of allowance for credit and impairment losses are as follows:

I 2021 2020
Allawance for Credit Logsss ‘
Financial assats at amortised cost 167,192,780 104,847 D80
Leaze receivables B0, 752 885 35913258
Impairment Losses
___Other non-current assefs 11,9286825 11,828,625
At December 31 250,874,280 152,788,964

An analysis of DBPLC's Allowance for Credit and Impalrment Losses as of December
31, 2021 and 2020 is shown below:

At January 1,  Provision for At December

2021 the year 31, 2021
Allawance for Credit Losses
Financial assets at amortised cost 104,947 080 62,245 710 167,192,730
Leasae recelvables 35,013,259 44 B39 606 80,752 865
Impairmant Losses
Other non-current assets 11,928,625 0 11,928,625

152,788,964 107,085,316 259,874,280




At January 1, Provision for At Decamber

o 2020 theyear 31,2020
Allowance for Credit Losses
Financial assets at amortised cost 103,284 477 1,662,603 104 247 DBD
Leasze raceivables 33,353,513 2,550 748 35,913,259
Impairment Losses
Other non-current assets 10,707,722 1,420,903 11,828,825
147,345,712 5,443 252 152,788, 964

Braakdown of Allowance for Credit Losses of Leass Receivables are as follows:

2021 2020
Finance lease receivables T8 840 500 35,000,884
Operating lease receivable = 812,385 812,365

80,752,865 35913259

Breakdown of Allowance for Credit Losses of Financial assets at amortised cost are as
follows:!

R - 2021 2020

Loans recemnvable — others 180,541,651 82 073,230
Accounts receivabla g 720 531 & B35 Ba2
Interest receivable 6,570,589 2 686 949
Inter-agency recaivables 227,820 227 820
Car loan receivable 123,199 143,189

167,192,790 104,947,080

14. PAYABLES

This account consisiz of the following:

: 2021 2020
Accounts payable 11,556 408 10,853,786
Acerued expenses payable 4,740,483 7,184,393

Due to -.';:f'l’if;erg and employeeas 3,581,413 3,343,239

19,888,304 21,461,418

Accounts payable partains to advances made by clients for payment of chattel mortgage
registration and other fees, payable to suppliers and unreleased checks as of year-end.

Due to officers and employees pertains to the monetary value of sick leave and vacation
leave credits of employees remaining at the end of the reporiing penod
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Breakdown of Accounis pavable as of Decamber 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

O o T zoz1 2020
Accounts payable — advances from clients @.811,688 7.962 455
Accounts payable — unreleased chacks 1,503,152 2,697 BET

_Accounts payable — supplier of goods and services 141,568 293,464

11,556,408 10,853,786

Breakdown of Accrued expenses payable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as
follows

I 2021 4030
Audit fees 2,562,635 3.289 493
Accrued gross receipts tax 1,757,301 1,793,213
Eetirement pay 2B66.838 469,687
_Accrued operating expenses 133708 1,632,000

4,740,483 7,184,393

15. INTER-AGENCY PAYABLES

This account consists of payables to the following:

— 2027 2020
BIR = Cther Taxes 538,240 5,118,089
555 & ECC 21,788 BT.181
PHIC 20 845 23073
PAG-IBIG 16,278 16,126

676,152 5,225 469

All the above payables were remitted to the agencies cancarmad in January 2022

16. LOANS PAYABLE

This account represents amount drawn from the Corporation's loan facilities with Bank of
tha Philippine Islands, Philippine MNational Bank, BDO Unibank, Inc., Eastwest Banking
Corporation, Security Bank Corporation and Metropalitan Bank and Trust Company. The
garliest Inans weare incurred i 2010-2012 to finance the acquisition of leased vessels
New borrowings in 2021 and 2020 amounted to P710 million and P1.18 billion,
respactively, and were used principally to paydown more expensive loans
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Details of this account are as follows

- 2021 2020
Philippine Maticnal Bank 450,000,000 700,000,000
BDO Unibank, Inc 304 313,728 425,038 216
Bank of the Philippine Islands 289,187,883 334,500,000
Eastwest Banking Corporation 267,750,000 325,864 824
Security Bank Corporation 100,000,000 100,000,000
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company O 100,000,000

1,411,251,619 1,986,404,050
Accrued interest on borrowings 1,578,629 5,117,010
Total 1,412,828,248 1,991,521,060
Current 1,162,740,013_1,476,832,334
Non-current 250,088,235 514,688,726

Interest rates on loans payable range from 4.00 per cent to 4.50 percent and 4 40U per
cent to 65.50 percent in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Interest expense on borrowings is presented as financial expenses In the statements af
comprehensive income amounting to P79,083919 and P107,116.276 for the years
ending Decamber 31, 2021 and 2020, raspaclively

17. LEASE LIABILITY

The movement of lease liability is as follows:

| 2021 _ 2020
At January 1 ' 24 406 628 1]
Additions/adjustments (121.426) 25,759,023
Payments _ (3,664.589) (1,352 385)
At December 31 20,620 603 24 406 628
Current ) B 5,154,442 4,126,545
“Non-Current 15,466,161 20,280,082
B B 2021 2020

Maturity of lease liability in:
Within one year 5,154 442 4,126 546
Beyond one year but not beyond five years 15,466,161 20,280,082

20,620,603 24,406,628

Tatal eash outflow for leasa hability in 2021 and 2020 amounted to P3,786,025 and
P1,352, 305, respectively. Payment in 2020 includes three months advance rent on office
space and one month advance rent on parking and dues.

Interest expense on lease liability is presented as financial expenses in the statements
of comprehensive income amounting to P138079 for the year 2021 No Interest
expense on lease liability was recognized for the year 2020
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18. TRUST LIABILITIES

This account consists of the following

Customers' deposit payabie
_Guaranty/Security deposit payable 247,000 247,000
358,904,307 423,655,778

98,342,106 166,763,895

Current

260,562,201

Mon-Current

Customers' Deppsi Payable

256,791,883

This account consists of guaranty deposite on finance leases ranging in amount from
five per cent to twenty per cent of the cost attributable to each vesselleguipment

The total project cost for each leased asset is based on the total purchasa price,

importation cost or appraised value.

Breakdown of deposit on finance leases by contractual settlement dates as of December

31, 2021 and 2020 iz as follows:

"Due within ane ;.'E-ﬂ-r
Due beyond gne year

2021

250,562,201

358,657,307

2020

OB 0G5 106 166,516,885

256,791,883

423,308,778

Breakdown of deposit on finance leases as to industry as of December 31, 2021 and

2020 s 58 follows:

A — 2021 _ 2020
Manufacturing Company 147,223,426 191,188,185
Construction Company 768 544 564 114, 706221
Maritima Industry 47 461,140 31,457,070
Transportation Campany 28,207,069 27,180,907
Mining and Quarrying Company 23,309 682 23,835,102
Educational Institution 17,105 548 13,203,885
Trading and Commercial Company B 425 B8O 11,430, 6598
Administrative and Support Services Company 7,380,000 10,306,600

358,657,307 423,308,778
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18, STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

Share Capital

DEP Leasing Corporation, a wholly-owned subgidiary of DBP, has an authorized capital
stock of F1.5 billlon, which iz divided intc 10 million common sharas of stock and five
millicn preferred shares of stock with total par values of P 1 billion and P 500 million
raspectively. Out of the authorized capital stock of DBPLC, 10 million commaon shares
and 1,32 million preferred shares with total par values P1.0 billion and P132 million
respectively, have been subscribed. The prefermed shares, which are not converlible into
common shares, were subscrnibed under the terms and conditions of the Subscription
Agreement dated May 30, 2012, for purposes of funding DBPLC's acguisition of the
Inzular Life Bullding in Cebu City. The building was then leased to and used as office
site of Region VIl of the Department of Labor and Employment (DOLE)

Retained Earnings (Deficit)

Dividend Deolarabion

In compliance with Republic Act No. 7856 requiring the declaration of dividends by
Government-Owned andfor Controlled Corporations, DBPLC is required to declare and
remit at l=ast 50 per cent of its annual net eamings.

For CY 2020, the Board of Directors (BOD) of DBPLC, in its April 29, 2021 regular
meating, approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to P13.025 million and
remitted to the Bureau of Treasury on May 03, 2021. In 2021, additional dividends were
declared and ramittad to the Mational Treasury amounting to P214 B46 representing
dividends due for the C¥Y 2017 and 201E, Meantime, for CY 2019, the BOD, in itz April
16, 2020 regular meeting, approved the declaration of cash dividends to the NG
amounting to P17.718 milllon and remitted to the BTR on April 20, 2020.

20. INTEREST INCOME

Interest income consists of the following

i -~ i 20 2020
Loans receivable - others B 0BB 425 106,121574
_Cash and cash equivalents 483545 550373

§9 551,970 106,672,347

21. LEASE INCOME

Lease income consists of the following

F e = 2020
Finance lease —— 83,142,279  93B12 804
Operating lease . 1,050,678

e 83,142,279 94,863 480
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22. MISCELLANEOUS INCOME

Miscellaneous Income consists of the following

Processing/service fees and other charges

Gain en disposal of property

2021 2020
2,360 882 1.5686 885
627,800 525341
6197 44,935
3,006,879 2137141

Other income pertains to penalties, surcharge and interest. Processing/service fees and
other charges consist of gross receipts tax on leage and interast income for the account

of the cliant,

23. EXPENSES

This account represents Salares and Other

Personnel

Expenses

and other

administrative expenses incurred for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Personnel Services

Salaries and wages

Other compensation
Mid-year and yaar-and bonus
Transpertation Allowance [ TA)
Representation Allowance (RA)]
Personnel economic relief allowance
Clothing allowance
Cash gift
Other bonus and allowances

2021

17,363,788

2,485 495
778,250
g 250
861,636
162,000
128,250

2,003,364

7,100,245

Personnel benefit confributions
555, ECC confributions
Phrilzalth contributions

_ Pag-Ilblg contributions

Other personnel benefits
Retirement gratuity

675,538
154,240

33 500
863,278

322,335

B 2020

18,408,435

2,897 456
938,119
938,119
685,000
150,000
135,500

2,604,848

8,425,042

455 100
146,758
31,400
673,258

933,594

~ 25[649,646 28,440,329




Maintenance and Other Operating Expanses
Taxes, duties and licensas
Directors’ and committee members' feas
Litigation/Asset acquired expense
Insurance expenses
Auditing service
Communication expenses
General services
Other professional service
Travelling expenses- local
Dffice supplies axpansa
FRentiLease expense
Repairs and maintenance
Training expensaes
Subscription expanses
Representation expanses
Litility expenses
Intermet subscription expenses
Advertising, promotional and marketing axpanse
Semi-expendable expanses
Fines, penalties and other charges
Miscellaneous expanse

14,961 450
2:431.800
1,660,878
1,153,510

830,835
B29 542
B11.,204
B38.134
468 054
287 570
270,880
257 469
180,611
128,320
B5 869
24 402
D

0

0

0

546 038

25,626,816

21,140,633
1,314,000
2,257 718
1,615,803
1,632,000
1.013,193

834,011
880,833
340,718
315,180
3298475
51,680
138,266
80,788
156,818
202,837
112,282
112,000
40, 506
4,338
388,819
35,911,962

51,276,462 64,352,291

Other bonuses and allowances consists of Pedormance Enhancemeant Incentiue_ (PEI,
Saervice Recognition Incentive (SRI) and Sick Leave/\Vacation Leave Eamed Credits.

Miscellaneous expense composed of the following

N 2021 2020
Corporate give away 231,280 0
Membership fees and dues 104,774 135.041
GAD expenses 55,526 0
Motarial fees 37,100 27,150
Periodicals and magazines 6,560 0
Other expenses - 110,780 228,628

S 546,039 388,819

Other Expenses consists of Cost of Online Loandex Information System and Cost of
Megative File Information System, reimbursement for Antigen Swab Tests of vanous

employees, disinfaction senvice, among others.
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Mon-Cash expanses composed of the following

- 2021 2020
Credit and impairment losses (Note 13) 107.085.316 5,443 252
Depreciation (Motes 8 and 10) 7,156,681 2,916 264
Amoriization (Note 11) 147,058 147 654

114, 388,955 8,507,210

24. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/BENEFIT)

The Income tax expense consists of

= = 2021 2020
Currant tax expense 1,034,068 10,807,828
Defarrad tax expense {income) {17 978 986) (3493 674)
Income tax expense adjustmeant due to implementation
of CREATE Law (853,832) 0

(17,837,850) 7,114,254

Details of current tax expense are as follows.

———— 2021 200
Financial income {loss) (S0, 187 486) 23,806 320
Add {Deduct): Reconciling lems
Mon-deductible expenses 102,620,935 12,583,650
Advance rentalirental payment (3.802,678)  (1,352,385)
Depraciation ’ 4 595 946 B30,935
Interest in arbitrage 96,708 181,623

_Interest income subject to final tax (483,545) (550,373)
Taxable Income 4,139,871 35,358,761
Tax rate _ 25% @ 30%

1,034 9668 10,607,928

Dietails of deferred tax expense (income) are as follows!

__________ = 2021 2020
Allowance for credit and impairment losses 26,771,329  (1,632.975)
Accrued expenses (1,150,615) (2.017.1386)
Rental expense 307,837 156,438
Adjustment in DTA due to change in income tax rate (7,849,585 - o

17,978,986  (3,493,674)

In 2021, an amount of PB33 832 was adjusted on the income tax expense of the current
period due to the change in income tax rate from a0 per cent to 25 per cent in
accordance with the CREATE Law which was implemented after the issuance of the

Corporation's CY 2020 Audited Financial Statements.
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Republic Act (RA) No. 11534 provides that an income tax of 25 per cent effectve July 1,
2020 shall be imposed upon the taxable income derived during each taxable year from
all sources within and without the Philippines by every corporation. Provided that
corporations with net taxable income not exceeding P5 million and with total assets not
exceeding P100 million exciuding tand an which the particular business entity's office,
plant and equipment are situated during the taxable year for which the tax is imposed,
shall be taxed at 20 per cant.

Adjustment in the deferred tax asset due to the change in income tax rate as part of the
implementation of the CREATE Law s computed as follows

- = 2021
Allowance far eredit and impairment losses 152,788 965
Accrued expenses B, 723 VBB

_Rental expansa (821,459}

158,991,294

_Tax rate - 5%

7,949,565

Details of deferred taxes as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 follows:

_ S WA 2020
Credit and impairment losses 64,068,570 45,835,689
Accrued expansas 530,332 20171386

177 472 (156,438)

Hental expanse
65,676,374 47,697,387

Income tax credit in 2021 and 2020 amounts to P1,401.908 and P1,819.782,
respectively and reported as Prepaid Intome Tax under Other Assets

The Corporation is subject to minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) which is computed
at two per cent of gross income, as defined under the tax regulations. or to the RCIT,
whichever is higher. No MCIT was reported in 2021 and 2020. As provided in RA Mo
11534, effective July 1, 2020 until June 30, 2023, the MCIT rate shall be one per cent.

In 2021 and 2020, the Corporation claimed ilemized deduction on computing for its
income tax dus

Under the Philippine tax laws, the Corporation is also subject to percentage and other
taxes. Percentage and other faxes paid consist of gross receipts tax and documentary
stamp tax

26. CONTINGENCIES
Contingent Asset

In the ordinary course of business, there are panding litigations involving the Corporation
which are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements
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As of 31 December 2021, the following are the on-going litigations involving the
Corporation as a claimant:

1. A collection suit for recovery of sums of maoney in the amount of P13,044. 249 6B
was filed by the Corporation against a defaulted lessee. DBPLC prevailed in this
case. The Supreme Court rescived to consider the casa closed and terminated
and a motion for the execution on the arder shall sogn be filed;

2. The Corporation has a claim in the amount of P17,010,718.23 against a client
that filed a case for voluntary rehabilitation under Republic Act No, 10142 or the
Financial Rehabilitation and Insclvency Act of 2010 (FRIA). In this case the
Court denied the confirmation of the Amended Rehabilitation Plan and the client
intends ta file a petition for certioran before the Court of Appeals. Meanwhile, the
slay order remains effective and is not automatically lifted via the courts
disapproval of the Rehabilitation Plan:

3. The Corporation has a claim in the amount of P2,345,357 .50 against a client that
filed a case for volumtary rehabilitation under Republic Act No. 10142, In this
case, the Corporation’s counsel, the Office of the Government Corporate
Counszel (DGCC), had already filed a pleading to register DBPLC's claim plus a
supplementary Motion yet to be filed:

4. The Corporation has a claim in the amount of P14,500.000.00 against a client
that filed a case for voluntary rehabilitation under Republic Act No. 10142 In this
case, the OGCC is set to submit comments to the Rehabilitation Plan and

5. The Corperation has a claim in the amount of P13,420,296 68 against a cllent
that filed a case for voluntary rehabilitation under Republic Act No. 10142, In this
case, the Corporation’s counsel had filed a Compliance and Motion befors the

Court

No income has been recognized during the financial year as the receipt of the claim is
not virtually certain.

26. SELECTED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The following are some of the financial performance indicators of the Corporation:

o E= 2021 2020 -
Current ratio 1.18:1 1.08:1
Debt-to-equity ratio 1.831 2271
Return on equity {7 Ba%%) 1.51%
Return on assets (2.90%:) 0.48%
Loans-to-assets 0.881 0.83:1
EBITDA Rate 9 (8% _1281%

48




: 27, SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER REVENUE
5 REGULATION 15-2010

In comphliance with the requirementz set forth by RR No, 15-2010, hereunder are the
information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year

DBPLC as a nan-VAT entity, 15 subject to parcentage tax and other faxes as well as
ncome taxes Percentage and other taxes consis! principally of Gross Receipts Tax
[(GRT) and Documentary Stamp Tax (DST). DBPLC pays the corresponding GRT on all
terms treated as gross income. DBPLC withheld corresponding taxes on payments of
compensation of employees fees to directors and cost of purchase price to contractors
and suppliers of goods and services

HSelow is the additional information required under the Revenue Regulations 13-2010
a. Amount of VAT output tax Mot Applicable

b, Amount of VAT inpidt tax
1. Beginning of the yvear

i, VAT input tax Mot Applicable
i, Deferred VAT input tax Mot Applicable

M 2. Current year's domestic purchases/payments for:
i Goods for resale/manufacture or further processing Mot Applicable
ii. Goods other than for resake of manufacture Nat Applicable
| li. Capital goods subject to amortization Mot Applicable
| iv. Capital goods not subject 1o amortization Mot Applicable
' v. Services lodged under cost of goods Mot Applicable
vi. Services lodged under pther accounts Mot Applicable
3. Claims for tax credit/refund and other adjustments. and Mot Applicable

4. Balance at the end of the year
i VAT input tax Mot Applicabla
ii. Deferred WAT input tax Mot Applicable

Ihe landed cost of imports and the amount of customs dulias

and tariff fees paid or accrued thereon Mot Applicable
The amount of excise tax/es, classified per major product

category, i.e. tobacco products. alcohol products. automobiles

minerals, cil and petroleum, etc. paid on

1. Locally produced excisable tlems. and Mot Applicable
2. Imported excisable tems Mot Applicabla
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a8 Daocumentary stamp tax (DST) on loan instruments, shares of
stock and other fransactions subject thereto;
DT an Finance Lease, Amortized Commercial Loan and

Rediscounting Facility 1,252,655
il.  DST on Loans Payable 7,530,176
Total 8,782,831

e o e =

f All other taxes, local and national, Including license and permit fees
lodged under the Taxes, duties and licenses account both under the
Maintenanse and other cperating expenses;

| Gross Receipts Tax 6,852 254
ii. Business permit 432 313
i, Real property tax 18,071
iv License fes 12,625
v Miscellaneous taxes 5,059
Total 7.431,322
g. The amount of withhalding taxes calegorized into
i. Tax on compansation and benefits 26418918
.  Creditable withholding tawes 2312044
i, Final withholding taxies 5,544 450
h., Amount's of deficiency tax assessments, whether protested or not 0

Fernod covered

Taxes paid in 2021 composad of

Final withholding taxes 6,438 283
Documentary stamp tax i 1,252 655
(3r05s receipts tax B 494 445
Expandad withholding taxes 2575718

2,819,424

Compensation and benefits -
21,580,535

Accrued GRT at the end of 2021 amounted to P1,757,301

ZB. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

DBPLC's related parties include Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP), key
management personnel and the retirement benefit fund as descrbed in the succeeding

paragraphs
The summary of the Corporation’s fransactons with its related parties in 2027 and 2020

e s

and the related outstanding balances as of December 31, 2027 and 2020 are as follows:
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The Corporation maintains curent, zero savings and option savings account with
DBP. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, current, zero savings and option savings
account maintained with DBP are included under Cash and Cash Equivalents
account in the statements of financial position (see MNote 5). These deposits
generally earn interest at annual rates of 0.250 per cent to 0.375 per cent in 2021
and 2020. Interest income eamed on these deposits in 2021 and 2020 are Included
as part of Interest Income under Income in the statements of comprehensive

Income

_ = 2021 2020
Cash in bank — local currency, current account 162,582,080 382 700,481
_Time deposits — local currency = 124,687,326 125,123,080

287,269 416 517,823,571

In 2021, prior to transferring to the new office, the Corporation leases its office
premises and warehouse from DBP. The term of the lease is one year, renewable
for such period under such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon with DBP
Related rent expense, power, light and water expenses, training and travelling
expenses incurred in 2021 and 2020 is presented as part of Maintenance and Other
Operating Expanses account under Expenses in the statemeants of comprehensive
inCoMme.,

B ) 2021 2020
Rental Expenses
Office premizes 265 6840 3,239,280
Warehouse 1,040 12,480
Electricity - S _ 0 128,185
i 270,980 3,379,955
o 2021 2020
Accrued Expenses Payable

Telephone line 2486 2,458
Electricity —— 0 41,105
2,456 43,561

Compensation of key management personnel (covering officer positions starting
from Vice president and up) is included as part of Salaries and other personnal-
related expensas under Expanses in the Stalements of Comprehensive Income.

Remuneration of key management personnel for the years 2021 and 2020 are as
follows:

) - - 2021 2020
Short term benefits 6,575,002 8,715,758
Post-employment benefits N BB 610 BBV 758

6,641,612 10,583,514
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lhe Corporation, in the past, also granted car loans to officers at no interest
Dutstanding leans to officers are presented as Car Loan Receivables under
Financial Assets at Amaorisad Cost account (Mote 7). Car loan recalvabla from ane
of the resigned officers amounted to P123,188 are considered impaired and with
100 per cent provision as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

Breakdown of Car Loan Receivable of existing officers are as follows

2021 2020
Car Loan Receivable
Currant 198,780 830,700
Mon-current 141,750 717,350

340,549 1,548,149

29. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

I LT -
Do withm 4 Due beyond Dl within 4 e Baryond
T 1 yl!:? Tetsl Waar 1 ';.:H' .

Finsecosl mmosty

Cash 207 45 415 [ 257 408,415 SIT,BE3ATI B 537984571
Eranes isaas moahalies 405 ¥ B26 TTd, T&Z BG83 1 2T 637 83an B9 A T A5E #56, 804 1,584,242, 781
Franon assais af

amorhrad cosl 38 RLE 184 401 534, 553 1,145, 087 BaT 00a,maEss T4 13 A 1370, 2208147
Man-frannpl dusts

SO BT B LA n or SEYmAr 27 5B1 84T [] -% 187,122 i | P e
trlpngtes Fges o =33, 250 230 250 = 347 508 34T LS
TP i1 13263 1] i b i o] 258 742 ] 268,743
Crefiaives Tos ASSEiE o LRl s S ATE 374 [i] 47 BOT 3BT 47 BET ZET
Bion-cument asset helddor-sale ] 2,040,871 ,0035T a 2,803,671 2,803,571
Hhar assets 1832 FF B.168, ddi 10,780,718 | 208 072 5,00, 42 11,008,534

1,523 000,621 12081, 745,500  2A04.840311  LADRETETIE  1,743,008,588 1 553,BEE 144

£

- FIFy] ] =,
Dun within 1 Ciue boyond Tl Dl within 1 Dasi Bprani Total
o ___ yoar | Foar ok - paar 1 jommr
Finarcial linhi ines
Loons payable 1082 el dad E0 08B FAE 1,412 534,248 1.478,832, 334 B4 B2B 20 1,581 531 cad
Trusl kadBag 08 343 C8 B0, 582 20 368 S04 207 165, 763,080 EE NN ] 425 655778
Lafsi kabd ey 5,154 442 15,4565, 160 o B2 603 4,128 548 20,0082 24 408 A28
Patyabis {6, BBE 304 [&] TR AR S04 21,401 418 o 21,451 498
Hor-Prananl lmobliz
Ity oy s 878,382 o eTeanz  gzasseen 0 5225400
1,286,801 04T E25 1168 53T IR ST A 1474, 400 BE2 J'51_.'|‘EI].EE1 2466, 172 157
Azaak — Lishility G 236 407 504 THE,625.05] B 001,607 138,470,134 851 347 AT 1,086,717 944

30, FINANCIAL RISK AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

DBPLC has Z7 regular employees, three probationary empioyee and four out-sourced
sarvice personnal (drivers and messengers) With limited human resources, it organizes
its activities to manage uncertainty and threats in order to evaluate and handie first
possible risk with greatest loss and greatest probability of oceurnng while those nsks
with lower probability of occurrence and lower loss are handled in descending ordar.

52




= . —

Rizk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Corparation’s risk management framework. The Board has established the Risk and
Governance Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Corporation’s risk management policies.

The risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by
the Corporation, 1o set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor nsks and
adherance to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and activities by the Corporation

In additicn, the Management Commitiee (ManCom) meets at least twice a month 1o
review performance, business plans, deliberate and act en matters reguinng approvals
or resolutions under its authority, including creditiease proposals. The ManCom consists
af the President and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Vice Prasident (VP) for Finance, VP
for Accounts Management Group, Assistant Vice President (AVPWOIC — Operations
Group, AVP for Accounts Management Group — Team 1, Manager for Accounts
Management Group = Team 2, Legal Officer |V, Head of Credit Review and Evaluation
Group (CREG) and Compliance/Risk Officer. DBPLC is exposed 1o vanous forms of
risks. These risks can be grouped intc credit, liquidity, operational, market and legal
risks. In managing these risks, the approach is not always risk minimizaton bt
managing risks to make an optional contribution to company revenues. DEPLC, In
accordance with DBP Risk Management, submiis maonthly reports and said nsks are
evaluated and consolidated with those of parent.

Market and credit risks management are carried out through policies approved by the
ManCom, the Credit Committes (Crecom) and cther board committee level such as the
Risk and Governance Committee, Audit Committee, Nominations and Remunerations
Commitiee Meeting, Anti-Money Laundering Committee Meeting among others and the
Board of Directors.

The Corporations’ risk management policies are summarized below
Impact of COVID-19

DEPLC has considerad the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating
to COVID-1% on the carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets. In
developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global
ecanomic conditions because of this pandemic, DBPLC, as at the date of approval of
these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information and
ralated infarmation, and economic forecasts. The Corporation expects to recover the
carrying amount of these assets and will continue to ciosely manitor any material
changes to future economic conditions

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss
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DEPLC iz naturally exposed to credit risk due to the nature of itz buziness. Credit
exposures arise principally when default in lease or loan occurs. A counterparty default
risk has 1o be evaluated thoroughly in order to aveid financial loss.

a) Credit Risk Management

DEPLC's credit evaluation reports and proposals are prepared indegendantly by the
CREG and are endorsed by Senior Managemeant to the approving bodies. The
Corporation has three levels of authority for the approval of credit applications to obtain
financing products fromm DBPLC depending on the threshold principal amount. The
Subcredit Committes (Subcrecom) - composed of the President and CEQ, the Head of
the CREG and the Head of the appropriate team (Team 1 or Team 2) of the AMG is
empoweared to approve applications with net amount of P25 Million and below subject to
Board notation. On the other hand, the Crecom (a board level committee) has authaority
to approve application with amounts above P25 Million to P100 Million, subject to Board
notation. Thirdly, the Governing Board holds the authority to approve a credit application
for a principal amount of more than P100 Million.

Credit evaluation and background checking as well as financial evaluation and projection
are thoroughly conducted befora a prospective account is recommended for approval.
Credit and business track records, ownership and financial capacity are vital factars in
evaluating the viability of an account.

b Collaferal

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk
of the obdigor.

Collateral comes in the form of financial and non-financial assets, The main types of
collaterals are real estate properties, chattel/movable assets and evidence of receivable
from customers.

The following table shows the breakdown of receivables as to coliateral:

- - ~ mozi 2020
Secured
FProperty under finance lease 1,2T0,137.635 1,566,854.507
Chattel morigage B&5 980,942 853 248 415
Unsecured 445,576,976 507,687,967
Total 2,401,695,556 2,927,768,889

¢) Impaiment assessment

The Corporation recognizes provision for probable losses based on the Bangko Sentr_al
ng Pilipinas (BSP) guidelines in setting up of allowances applicable for financial
institutions with simple operations as prowided in BSP Circular 1017




dl Maximum exposure credit isk before colfateral held or other credi! enftancermants

= 2021 2020 _
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum

— Amount Exposure Amount Exposure
Financial assats:

Cash 2B7 409,415 287 408 495 517,863,571 517,863,571
Finance Lease

Receivables 1,348,978,135 1,3498.6v8,135 1,509.203.655 1500283655
Loans Receivables

= Others ~1,282.099,572 1282099572 14555680358 1455 560 358
‘Total 2,919,487,122 2919487122 3,572,826,584 3,572,826594

e) Concenlration of risks of financial assets with credif nisk exposure

As of December 31, 2021

Finance Lease

Loans Recelivable-

N N - Gash Receivables Others
Elar!h‘ qnd Other financial 587 408,415 o 0
institutions
Services 0 399,044 822 722,888 212
Manufacturing ] 441,380 168 172,129,784
Feal Estate 0 265,620,765 149,833,135
Public Sactor 0 G, 191,144 198,452 481
Wholesale and Retail Trade 0 129,477 569 19,810,268
_Mining and Quamrying 0 50253667 16885682
Tatal 287,409 415 1.349,978,135 1,282,099, 572
Az of December 31, 2020
Cash Finance Lease Loans Receivable-
I - Receivables Others
Bank and Other financial 517 823,571 q 0
INstiutions
Services 0 483,282 074 B45 738,677
Manufacturing ¥ 551,832 274 172,460,334
Real Estale 0 367,764 890 163.556 316
Public Sector 0 71,726,060 254 488,790
Whaolesale and Retail Trade 0 37,271,798 11,964 B0
Mining and Quarrying 0 77,416,558 7,360,351
Total §17.823,571 1,599, 293,655 1,455 569 358

fi Credi Quality of Financial Assots

The 'cradit quality of financial assets, net of unearned lease and Interest income but

gross of allowance for credit losses |5 as follows:

L




As of December 31, 2021

Cash Finance Lease Laans Recelvable-

. I _Receivables Others
Meither past due nor i
impaired 28T 400 415 1,267, 700,529 1,125, 260,696
Past due but not impaired ] 1] a
Impaired b = B22377606 158,838,876
Total 287,409,415 1,349,978,135 1,282 099 572
As of December 31, 2020
Cidah Finance Lease Loans Receivable-
Receivables ~ Others
NeRhar paxt dus-nof 517063571  1,543,770,502 1,288,730,482
impalired
Past due but not impaired 0 0 0
Impaired 0 55523153 156838876
Total 517,983,571 1,599,293,655 1,455 569,358

Neither past due nor impaired

Leaze and loan receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are due from
accounts that have appropriate and strong credit history, with minimal account defaults
and whose receivable are fully recoverable based on past expenences

Past due but not impaired

Past due lease and loans receivables are not considered impaired, unless other
information is available to the contrary. Collateralized past due loans are not considered
impairad when cash flows that may result from foreclosure of the related collateral are
higher that the carrying amount of the lease/loan

impaired

Impaired lease and loans receivables include accounts which are individually and
collectively assessed for Impairment. The total impairment provision of lsase and loan
receivables represented provision for individually and collectively impaired lease and
loan receivables. Further informatien an impairment of lease and loan recewvable is
provided in Notes 6, 7 and 13

Detailed Credit Quality Analysis on Amortized Cost — Loans and Receivables

In view of PFRS 9 compliance, presented below are the Corporation’s credit exposure of
recaivable from borrowers and its corresponding staging analysis:

A




Finance Lease Receivables

Gross Carrying Amount

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 _Total
Large Enterprisas (L) 803,029,891 55,683,223 12122403  1,140,8358617
Medrirm Enlerprises (M) 118,754,018 [ 17,702 987 138,457,005
Small Enterprizes (S) B.4584 469 0 0 8,494 459
Micro Enterprises (Mi} a i} i ]
_National Govarmment Units B4, 181, 144 o i} 64,181,144
Gross Lease Receivables 1,094 469,522 65,683,223 199 825,390 1349978135
Movements in Gross Carrying Amounts:
Stage 1 Stage2 = Staged Total
January 1, 2021 1,543, 770,502 i 55523153 1,555,293 655
P! Snsels orginted. of 126,678 351 0 126,679,351
purchased
Asseis derecognized or -y - " 4
repaid {excluding write-offs) (S0 E,E0T) 0 0 (375004,871)
Transfar to Stage 1 o a 0 0
Transfer to Stage 2 (55883 223 55 683,223 0 ]
Transfer to Stage 3 {144, 302,237) 0 144,302,237 &
Amountswritten-off 0 O 0 g1
December 31, 2021 1,094,469,522 55,683,223 199,825,300 1,349,978,135
Movements in the Allowance for Expected Credit Losses:

WL UN— Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 ~ Total
January 1, 2021 11,219,610 ] 23,781,284 35,000 894
Mew assels originated or 705,345 0 0 795 345
purchased !

ARG ORERGORIIEAG B 5 026,033 0 3 GB0.295 5,007,228
repaid {excluding write-offs) A
Transfer io Siege 1 a 0 0 0
Transfar io Stage 2 0 4,423 981 0 4,423 981
Transfar io Stage 3 ¥} L 30,613,052 M 513,082
_Amounts written-off g4 o 0
December 31, 2021 17,041,668 4,423,981 §8,374.631 79,840,500
Loans Receivahles — others
Gross Carrying Amount O
= Stage1  Stage?2 Stage 3 Total
Large Enterprises (L) 174,116,810 178035063 519,445 583 871,597 436
Medium Enterprises (M} 17,661,786 0 153,110,388 170,772,174
Small Enterprisas (5] 7,340,262 o 26,531,503 33,871,765
Micra Enberprises {Mi) 3,024 574 0 4 381,132 7 406,708
_Matianal Governmant Units 188,452 481 : o {0 188,452 491
Gross Loans Receivables 400,585,923 178,035,063 T03,468,586 1.281,009.,572
ar




Interest Receivables

= | Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Large Ernterprises (L} 1,884 6RY 650,772 10,657 5564 13,183,018
kdadium Enterprises (M) 132,150 d 428 285 561,135
Small Enterprises (5) 15,833 ] B4 005 110,818
Micro Entarprisas (M) 0 Q o 0
Mational Government Units 0 Q o 0
Interest Receivables 2,032,665 650,772 11,181 5638 13,864,975

Movemnents in Gross Carrying Amaounts:

e Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
January 1, 2021 1,288,730,482 0 156838876 1455565358
Mew assets onginated or

1 4 1.9 =

purchased 31,188,249 a 31,188 39448
Assets derecognized or q .
repaid (excluding write-offs) {204,636,735) 0 (22,000) (204 658.735)
Transier o Stage 1 1] 0 ¥} 0
Transfer o Stage 2 (178,035 063 178035063 1] i
Transfer to Stage 3 (BB, B51, TO) 0 548,851,709 0
Amounts written-off L 2 0 Q0
December 31, 2021 400,695,924 178,035,063 703,468,585 1,282,088.572

Movements in the Allowance for Expected Credit Losses:

B __Stage1  Stage2 Stage 3 Total
Jdanuary 1, 2021 12,987,305 78,085,925 92,073,230
New assels originated or 311 B89 o 911 BAY
purchasad
Agsate derecognized or s 1
repaid {excluding write-offs) E'E",HST'E'H - (11,000} 56,156,502
Transfer to Stage 1 ] Q & 0
Transfer to Staga 2 {17,803 508) 17,803,506 a #]
Transfer to Stage 3 {48 65T 260) 0 48657260 o
Amounts written-off L .. 0 0
December 31, 2021 4,005,960 17,803,506 128,732,185 150,541,651

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk |z the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet itz existing or future
obligations when they fall due under normal and stress circumstances. Ta limit this risk,
management monitors future cash flows and liquidity on a weekly basis. This
incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows, available credit lines from banks

and short-term investments,

In order to strengthen the availability of its funding sources, DBPLC has opened credit
facilities with Bank of the Philippine Islands, BDO Unibank, Inc., East West Banking
Corporation, Security Bank, Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company and Philippine

Mational Bank.




Callection of lease rentals and loan amortizations is closely monitored to assure
prompiness. Expenditures including liguidation of advances, are likewise well monitored.

All funds of DBPLC are deposited only with DBF. Only 8 minimal amount is maintained
under its current account while the rest of the funds are in higher yieiding depaosits to
maximize sarnings.

The DBPLC Board, in its October 01, 2012 meeting, approved the prescribed limit on
Maximum Cumulative Duiflow (MCO) and Interest Rate (IR) Gap in ordar to properly
monitor the cash inflows and outflows of the Corporation

Analvsis of Rnancial Nabilities by remalning conlraciual maturities

Az of Decamber 31, 2021

Due within1  Ower 1 year

year *“.3_.‘4!'_!.5'.'.5 Owver 3 years Total )
Financial liabilities
Loans payable 1,162, 740,013 250,088 235 0 1,412,828 248
Payables 19,888,304 0 ] 10,888,304
Leaze liability 5,154 442 10,058 072 5,368 089 20,620,603
Trust liabilities 98,342,106 129,020,455 131,541,746 358,904,307
' 1,286,124, 866 369 206,762 135993651 1,812 241 462

As of December 31, 2020

Due within 1 Over 1 year

year to 3 years Over 3 years Total
Financial Ii.ai:;iiila.és i
Loans payable 1,476,832 334 420,700 880 83 987 746 1,991,521,060
Payables 21461 418 0 o 21,461,418
Lease Liability 4 126 546 10,252 188 10,027 6893 24 406,628
Trust liabilities 166,763,885 175998 719 80,793,164 423,655,778

1.669,184,193 606,951,888 184,808,803 2,460,944,844

Financial assets available to meet all of the liabilities include cash in bank and loans and
recaivables. The Corporation would also be able to meet unexpected net cash outflows
by accessing additional funding sources

Operational Risk

This risk covers the risk of loss arising from fraud, inadequate or failed processes,
unauthorized activities, error, omission, inefficiency, systems failure or external event.

This risk may arise from loss or damage on the leased assets and loan collaterals as
wall s third parties due to human emor or naturalfortuitous events that will temporarily
or permanently disable the eaming potential/capacity of the assets. Insurance on leased
asselz and collaterals is required to assure recovery of loss

54




Market Risk

Interest rates as basis for determining lease rentals and fcan amortizations are closely
moniforad and are determined in accordance with the Corporation’s Pricing Policy and
based on prevailing market rates in order to minimize the gap betwean cost of funds and
ending rates due to market volatility.

31. APPROVAL FOR THE RELEASE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Board of Directors of the DBP Leasing Corporation (DEPLC) has reviewed and

approved the release of the accompanying comparative financial statements and
accompanying notes to financial statements on January 26, 2022

&0




PART I

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS




OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

MNOMN-FINAMCIAL ISSUES
Corana Virus Disease 2015 (COVID-13)
Grant of Hazard Pay

11 Administrative Order (AC) No. 26 dated March 23, 2020 authorizes the grant of
Hazard Pay to government personnel who physically report for work dunng the penod of
implementation of an Enhanced Community Quarantine (ECQ) relative to the COVID-18
Outbreak. The AQ entittes authorzed government personnel who occupy regular
contractual or casual positions, or are engaged through Contract of Service, Job Order
(JOY ar other similar schemes in the nafional government agencias, Including state
universities and colleges and government-owned and controlled corporations (GOCCs)
and local government units, a hazard pay of not exceeding P500 a day par person.

1.2 in 2021, DBPLC disbursed P223 000 representing hazard pay benefit to its
smployees who were authorized to physically report to work station during the
implementation of Modified ECQ in Metro Manila. The grant were in accordance with the
AQ Mo 28,

Provision for shutlle services for amployees reparting for work

1.3, On Aprl 30, 2020, the DOLE and the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI]
issued Interim Guidelines on Workplace Prevention and Control of COVID-18. Item 5,
Section V thereof requires employers, where applicable, to provide shuttle services
andior decent sccommodation on’ near-site location to lessen travel and people
movement.

1.4 In compliance with the guidelines, DBPLC continued providing shuttle senices to
its employees who were required to report for work on a skeletal work force during the
implermantation of community quarantine in CY 2021, The total transportation and
maintenance expenses incurred for the pancd ending December 31, 20271 amaunted to
PGE32 553.36. The expensas incurred wera In accordance with item 5, Section V al the
DOLE and DTI Interim Guidalines

Reverse Transcripion Polymerase Chain Reaction (RT-PCR) tests for employses,
dizinfection services and purchase of supplies and protective equismeant

15  On May 18 2020, the Depariment of Labor and Employment (DOLE) issued
Laber Adviscry No. 18 seres of 2020 Guidelines on the Cost of COVID-19 Prevention
and Control Measures. which prowvides, under Seciion 2 of the Advisory, that all
employers shall shoulder the cost of COVID-18 prevention and control measures such
as but not limited to the following: testing, disinfection facilites, hand sanitizers, personal
protective equipment (PPEs Le  fsce mask), signages, proper onentation and fraining of
workers including information. educafion and communication matenals on COVID-18
prevention and contngd




1.6. For CY 2021, DBPLC paid a total of P4,500.00 for RT-PCR test of its employees
exposad to COWVID-19 and procured disinfection service, supplies such as alcohol,
face masks and disinfectant spray and air purifiers totaling P219,504. 30, The expenses
incurred were in accordance with the DOLE Labor Advisory No. 18 series of 2020,

Compliance with Tax Laws

Z DBPLC complied with tax laws and regulations, particularly, en the reguiremeants
of Revenue Mamarandum Circular Mo, 17-2011 and Revenue Regulation Mo 15-2010

2.1 Infarmation on taxes and licenses paid or accrued during the taxable year 2021
are disclosed in Part | of the report, undar Note 27 ta the Financal Statements for CY
2021, The taxes withheld on compensation, banefits and other sources amounting to
F21.580 million were remitted ta the Bureau of Internal Revenue within the deadline
prescribed under the Mational Intemal Revenue Code

Gender and Development {GAD)

3. As a continuing effort to adhere to the mandate of RA No. 9710, the DBPLC has
adopted gender mainstreaming as a strategy to promote women's human rights and
eliminate gender discrimination in their systems, structures, policies, programs
processes, and proceduras

3.1 For CY 2021 audit of the GAD funds and activities, the following were observed

a. GAD Focal Paint System (GFPS) was created in accordance with MCW thru
the issuance of Office Order No. 10-19 dated August 15, 2019 and updated
on October 22, 2021 under Office Order No. 11-21;

b. The DBPLC partially prépared its GAD Agenda for CY 2018-2023 by
organizing the planning team, partially conducting its gender analysis, setting
its GAD Wision and Mission, formulating its GAD Goals, and identifying its
GEAD program, projecis and activities. GAD Strategic Framework template
was prepared,. however, GAD Strategic Flan template is yvet (0 be finalized

GAD Plan and Budget (GPB) for CY 2021 was prepared, approved by the
Head of Agency, submified 1o and andorsed by tha Philippine Cammission for
Wamen (PCW) and submified o the auditor during thie audit period.

'}

d. GAD budget of P3.300 millon or Seven (7% per cent of the total corporate
cperating budget of P45 518 milion or P3.390 was appropriated

e. GALD Accompishment Repori and evaluation of the GFB utilizafion is being
preparsd by the Agency, pandng submission to POW on or befere March 18
2022 in accordance weEh FLAW Memorandum Circular 2021-06

f. Sex-disagpregaied cets was on &= and

3. GAD monitonng and Svalsstion system (MES) was partially implemented

G




3.1 We acknowledged Management's continued effor e adopt gender
mainstreaming in their systems, structures, policies programs, processes, and
procedurss.

Dividends to the National Government

4 Section 5 of the 2016 Implementing Rules and Regulations of Republic Act (RA)
No. 7656 issued by the Depariment of Finance requires Government-Owned and/or
Controlled Corparations to declare and pay dividends to the National Gavernment of at
least 50 per cent of their annual net BAEMMings.

4.1. The Board of Directors of DBPLC. in its Aprl 29, 2021 meeting, approved the
declaration of cash dividends for CY 2020 amounting to P13.025 millien
Payment of dividends was made to the Bureau of Treasury on May 3, 2021,
DBPLC complied with the declaration and paymeni of dividends of at least 500
of its earnings in 2021

555, Phithealth and Pag-IBIG Premiums

5 In 2021, DBPLC complied with RA Mo, 8282 on the collaction and remittance of
contnbutions toc 555 as follows:

a mandatory monthly contribution of covered employees and employer in
accordance with Section 18 and

b, remittance of employees' and employer's contributions and employees’
compansation premium within the prescribed period pursuant to Section 16

5.1. DBPLC also complied on the payment of national health insurance premium
cantributions te the Philhealth under Section 18 of Title I, Rule 1II of the Implementing
Rules and Regulations of RA No. 7875 as amended, as well as with the collection and
remittance of contributions to the Pag-IBIG Fund under Seclion 3 of Rule VIl of the
Implementing Rules and Regulations of R4 No. 9679

5.2 The outstanding payables as of December 31, 2021 to 8858 Fhithealth and Pag-
IBIG amounting to PS1,789, P29,845 and P16 278, respectively, were all remitted to the
agencies concerned in January 2022,

Status of Audit Suspensions, Disallowances and Charges
G. As of December 31, 2021, the balance of audit disallowances was

PS,970,276.40. Audit disallowance issued during the year amounted to P3,847 129.04
There were no audit suspensions and charges as of year-and

K]
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STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR
YEAR’S AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS




STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEAR'S AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

There were no audit recommendations embodied in CY 2020 AAR for
implamantation




